ANNUAL ENERGY AUDIT REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

Of



COCHIN PORT AUTHORITY (CoPA)

Willingdon Island, Cochin

July 2023

conducted by



Centre for Energy, Environment and Productivity

Accredited Energy Auditor – AEA 0133 1039, 26th street, H Block, Ponni Colony Anna Nagar, Chennai – 600 040 <u>http://tallkumar.wixsite.com/ceep</u> 2 044-26163483 1 9444882553 I tallkumar@gmail.com



Centre for Energy, Environment and Productivity

Plot No 1039, 26th Street, 'H' Block, Ponni Colony, Anna Nagar, Chennai 600040 2 044-26163483 99444882553 email: tallkumar@gmail.com

2rd August 2023

The Chief Mechanical Engineer,

Cochin Port Authority,

Willingdon Island ,

Cochin 682009.

Sir,

Sub: Energy Audit Report of the Cochin Port Authority (Designated Consumer Number: DISOD48KL)

for the year 2022-23 -Submission -reg

Ref:

- 8/1/BEE/DISCOM/2021. Dated 06th October 2021 -Manner and Intervals for Conduct of Energy Audit (Accounting) in Electricity Distribution Companies) Regulations, 2021 and subsequent amendments by the Bureau of Energy Efficiency
- Contract No: GEMC-511687788965203 dated 4th July 2023

As per the reference cited above, please find enclosed herewith the Energy Audit Report of Cochin Port Authority (Designated Consumer Number: DIS0048KL), for favour of further action.

Yours faithfully

J.m.

J Nagesh Kumar Accredited Energy Auditor

Canton for Emergy, Erichtenrent and Productivity Plat Ins. 1020, 2000 Stead, 44 Dates, Posed Calabor, Anna Regar, Charman - 1020 0448, Pos. Date 2518 24105, SecentREPERT

Enclosure: Energy audit report of Cochin Port Authority for the year 2022-23

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of Centre for Energy, Environment and Productivity (CEEP), Chennai we place on record our sincere gratitude to the management of Cochin Port Authority (CoPA) for awarding us the task of carrying out Mandatory Energy audit, for the kind hospitality and support extended for the study of their services.

We wish to profusely thank Shri V. Thuraipandian, Chief Mechanical Engineer for his thoughtprovoking suggestions and sharing his pearls of wisdom with us while steering the conduct of the audit.

We are indebted to Shri Ajayakumar R.S., Executive Engineer (Elec) & Nodal officer and Smt Jayalakshmy S, Assistant Executive Engineer (Elec), for their extensive interactions and support rendered to the study.

We are extremely thankful to Shri Mathew Paul, Assistant Engineer (Elec), Shri Johny Alumparambil, Assistant Engineer (Electrical) and to all the other officers and staff who associated enthusiastically with us in organising and being a part of the audit process for successfully accomplishing the objectives of the audit.

AUDIT TEAM

S.NO	Name of the officer	Qualifica tion	Designation
1.	Dr. J. Nagesh Kumar	Ph.D	Accredited Energy auditor Reg No: 0133
2	Shri Sunilkumar V K	B. Tech (Elec)	Sector expert (DISCOM) & Certified Energy Auditor Reg No: EA 3642
3.	Shri Jagadish Chandran	B.E.	Electrical Auditor
4.	Shri K.G. Diwakar	M.E.	Certified Energy Auditor

1.	Executive summary	8
1.1	About DISCOM	8
1.2	Energy performance of the DISCOM	10
1.2.1	Performance summary of the CoPA for the FY 2022-23	10
1.2.2	Quarter wise Performance of the CoPA for the FY 2022-23	10
1.3.0	Category wise consumers and energy sales for the FY 2022-23	12
1.4	Infrastructure details	13
1.4.1	Voltage based Consumers and metering infrastructure	13
1.5	Feeder wise energy distribution in Willingdon Island	14
1.6	Details of Energy conservation measures adopted by the	15
	DISCOM	
2.0	Background	17
20	Extend of regulation and the role of the BEE	17
2.1	Purpose of the audit and accounting report	22
2.2	Period of the energy audit and accounting	22
3	Introduction of DISCOM	22
3.1	Name and address of the DISCOM(DC)	23
3.1.2	Name and details of the Energy Manager and authorised	23
5.1.2	signatory (Nodal officer) the DC	23
3.1.3	Centralised Energy accounts and Audit Cell in CoPA (Team	23
	members)	
3.2	Summary profile of the DISCOM with salient features	24
33	Asset details	26
331	Infrastructure details	26
5.5.1		20
3.3.2	Voltage based consumers metering infrastructure and other	26
	assets	
3.3.3	Distribution Transformer details	27
3.3.4.	Performance summary of the CoPA for the FY 2022-23	28
3.3.5	Energy input Particulars of CoPA for the FY 2022-23	28
3.3.6	Energy Sales Particulars of CoPA for the FY 2022-23	29
		_>
3.3.7	Category wise consumers for the FY 2022-23	30
3.4	Energy conservation measures already taken and proposed for	32
	future	
4.	Energy flow analysis	34
4.1	Energy flow across 5 service levels	34
411	Energy Input Particulars of CoPA for the EV 2022-23	35
7.1.1	Energy input rationals of Cor A for the FT 2022-25	55
4.1.2	Energy Sales Particulars of CoPA for the FY 2022-23	36
4.2	Validation of metered data	37

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ANNUAL ENERGY AUDIT REPORT OF COCHIN PORT AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

4.2.1	Physical verification of meters at Sub station	37
4.3	Verification and Validation of Input Energy	38
4.3.1	Verification of Purchase bill	38
4.3.1.1	Power purchase bill of Willingdon Island	38
4.3.1.2	Power purchase bill of Vallarpadam & Puthuvypin area	38
4.3.2.	Validation of Renewable Energy	39
4.3.3	Consolidated total of monthly statement for the FY 2022-23	40
4.3.4	Validation of Energy sales Particulars for the FY 2022-23	41
5	Losses and subsidy computation	42
5.1	Energy account of the previous years	42
5.2.	Input Energy, AT&C losses-aggregate, voltage wise, Category wise, Division wise etc	42
5.2.1	Energy accounts analysis and performance for the FY 2022-23	42
5.2.2	Quarter wise Energy input to the CoPA for the FY 2022-23	42
5.2.3	Quarter wise Energy Sales and Loss details for the FY 2022-23	44
5.2.4	Loss analysis of the two distribution areas under the CoPA for the FY 2022-23	46
5.2.5	Feeder wise Energy Distribution under the Willingdon Island for the FY 2022-23	47
5.3.	Subsidy computation and analysis (based on quarterly data)	
		48
5.3.1	Category wise consumption and revenue realisation for the FY 2022-23	47
5.3.2	Quarter wise and Category wise revenue realisation for the FY 2022-23	49
5.3.3.	Trend analysis and identifications of key exceptions	50
5.3.4.	Average billing rate under the CoPA for the FY 2022-23	50
6.	Energy audit findings	51
6.1	Review of capacity of the DISCOMs energy accounting and audit cell	51
6.2	Critical analysis by the Energy auditor	51
6.2.1	Status and Progress in compliance with the pre-requisites for Energy accounting	51

6.2.2	Status and Progress in compliance with the reporting requirements of the regulation	53
6.2.3.	Management analysis	55
6.3	Revised findings based on data validation and field verification	58
6.4	Inclusions and exclusions	59
6.5	Recommendations and best practises	59
7.	Conclusion and action plan	60
7.1	Summary of critical analysis by Energy Auditor	60
7.2	Summary of key findings	62
7.3	Recommendations and best practices for energy accounting and loss reduction	63
7.4.1	Action plan for monitoring and reporting	65
7.4.2	Action plan for automated energy accounting	66
8.	Annexure to be accompanied with the report	67
8.1.	Introduction of Verification team	68
8.2.	Minutes of the Meeting with the DISCOM team	69
8.3.	Check List prepared by auditing Firm.	71
8.4.	Brief Approach, Scope & Methodology for audit	72
8.5.	Infrastructure Details	76
8.5.1	Voltage based consumers and metering infrastructure	76
8.5.2	Detailed list of transformers	78
8.6.	Electrical Distribution System	79
8.6.1	Feeder wise load distribution under the Willingdon area	80
8.6.2	Energy performance of the previous year	80
8.6.3	Analysis of Performance of the Two Distribution areas under the CoPA for the FY 2022-23	81
8.7	Power Purchase Details	82
8.7.1	Power purchase details of the Willingdon Island	82
8.7.2	Power purchase details of the Vallarpadam area	83
8.8	Single line Diagram of the Transmission and Distribution system	84
8.8.1	SLD of the Willingdon Island	84
8.8.2	SLD of the Vallarpadam area	85
8.9	Category wise consumers and average billing rate	86
8.10	Category of service details	86

ANNUAL ENERGY AUDIT REPORT OF COCHIN PORT AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

8.11	List of documents verified with each parameter	87
8.12	Brief description of the Unit	
		88
8.13	List of Parameters arrived through calculation	88
8.14	Energy audit formats	89
8.15	Energy purchase bill Vallarpadam	97
8.16	Energy purchase bill Willingdon Island	98
8.17	Peak load measurement details of Transformers	99
8.18	Photos of functional feeder meters installed in Willingdon Island	100
8.19	Feeder meter readings downloaded from the AMI software	104
	List of Tables	106
	List of Figures	108

1. Executive Summary

1.1 About the DISCOM

Cochin Port Authority (CoPA) is a Body Corporate under the Major Port Authorities Act, 2021 (formerly Cochin Port Trust).

CoPA is also a Deemed Electricity Distribution Licensee as per Electricity Act 2003 and a notified DC (**DC No: DIS0048KL**) under the PAT Cycle VII vide notification No: S.O.4552(E) dated 26th September 2022 by the Ministry of Power, GOI.

CoPA is purchasing electricity from M/s Kerala State Electricity Board Limited, a major distribution licensee and distributes to the consumers in Port area, under its jurisdictional power in Willingdon Island, Vallarpadam & Puthuvypin area. CoPA is availing 6.5MVA power at 110 KV system from KSEBL in Willingdon Island and 3 MVA power at 11 kV Voltage at Vallarpadam and distributing electricity to the consumers within the premises of the Port

Presently, CoPA has a 110kV/11kV Substation with 2Nos 10/12.5MVA power transformers and associated switchgears and control gears at Wellington Island and 11 kV receiving Station at Vallarpadam .11kV power is distributed to the consumers through 11kV UG Cables / dedicated 11 kV UG Cables and linked through Ring Main system for redundancy in supply /providing 24x7 days supply.LT feeding is by means of LT OH/ UG cable lines. At present there are 1256 consumers of which 36 are HT Consumers and 1220 are LT consumers. Consumer metering is 100% SMART meters for all category of consumers. However self-consumption and street light supply are metered through SMART meters/Electronic meters. Action has already been taken to purchase SMART meters for replacing the balance electronic meters with SMART meters. SMART Meters are with AMI features with prepaid facility. All the SMART Meters are connected to a centralised AMI software system through mobile network using GPRS . The billing and accounting are done using SAP System.

There are eleven 11 KV feeders emanating from 110/11 KV substation at Willingdon Island and four 11 kV feeders at Vallarpadam & Puthuvypin area. There are 30 nos of 11kV/415Volt and 11 kV/3.3 kV distribution transformers .CoPA has commissioned 100kWp and 150kWp grid connected solar plant . CoPA has also permitted Net metering facility for solar plants of four LT and HT Prosumers. Import/Export of energy from the solar plants are accounted through SMART meter. The energy inputs from the solar plants are also covered in the Energy audit.

Key Projects

RDSS Project

CoPA has obtained sanction for an amount of Rs 15.13 Crores for the modernisation and loss reduction projects under the Revamped Distribution Sector Scheme (RDSS) of Ministry of Power Govt of India. Additional infrastructure proposed through RDSS is the replacement of old cables, transformers and Ring main units, addition of 3 nos. 11 kV panels, completion of metering for 11 kV feeders, DTR metering and SCADA project. The above works will be commissioned during the financial year 2023-24 & 2024-25. All the infrastructures commissioned during the FY 2023-24 & 2024-25 will be covered under the scope of energy auditing / accounting.

Other Projects

CoPA has proposed for enhancement of contract demand to 8 MVA at Vallarpadam for meeting the immediate power requirement of the consumers. So the total contract demand at Vallarpadam will be enhanced to 8 MVA in 11 kV system through multiple feeders by December 2023.

Further CoPA proposes to provide shore power supply to International Cruise Vessels calling at Cochin Port, as part of Maritime India Vision 2030(MIV 2030). The contract demand of 6 MVA power supply, CoPA propose to avail Green Energy through open Access, for this project. The project is expected to be commissioned in FY 2024-25. The contract demand of CoPA at Willington Island will be enhanced to 12.5 MVA on commissioning of the shore power supply. CoPA proposes to implement 1.5MWp grid connected floating solar plant which is expected to be commissioned by March 2024.

1.2 Energy performance of the DISCOM

S.NO	Energy input details	Units	Quantity
А	Energy purchased	MU	36.534
В	Net input energy (at DISCOM Periphery after	MU	36.534
	adjusting the transmission losses and energy		
	traded)		
С	Energy billed	MU	35.611
D	T& D Loss	MU	0.923
Е	% T&D Loss	%	2.53
G	Amount of Energy billed	Rs (Crores)	38.29
Н	Amount of collection	Rs (Crores)	38.29
Н	Collection efficiency	%	100
Ι	% AT&C Loss	%	2.53

1.2.1 Performance summary of the CoPA for the FY 2022-23

Table 1

	-					
S.NO	Energy input details	Units	QTR1	QTR2	QTR3	QTR 4
A	Energy purchased	MU	10.106	8.147	9.016	9.264
В	Net input energy (at DISCOM Periphery after adjusting the transmission losses and energy traded)	MU	10.106	8.147	9.016	9.264
С	Energy billed	MU	9.790	7.953	8.820	9.048
D	T& D Loss	MU	0.317	0.195	0.197	0.216
Е	% T&D Loss	%	3.13	2.39	2.16	2.33
G	Amount of Energy billed	Rs (Crores)	10.50	8.45	9.45	9.88
H	Amount of collection	Rs (Crores)	10.50	8.45	9.45	9.88
Н	Collection efficiency	%	100	100	100	100
Ι	% AT&C Loss	%	3.13	2.39	2.16	2.33

1.2.2. Quarter wise performance of the CoPA for the FY 2022-23

Table 2



Net input Energy versus Total energy bill of CoPA for the year 2022-23

Figure-1

1.2.5 Quarter wise T&D Loss performance for the FY 2022-23



Fig -2

Period From 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023								
Consumer pro		Energy pa	arameters	Comm	ercial Para	ercial Parameter		
Consumer category	Total Number of connectio ns (Nos)	% of number of connecti ons	Total energy	% of energy consump tion	Billed Amount in Rs. Crore	Collected Amount in Rs. Crore	Collectio n Efficiency	Average billing rate
Residential	428	34%	0.926641	3%	0.602286	0.602286	100.00%	6.499671
Agricultural	0	0%	0	0%	0	0	0.00%	0
Commercial/Industrial-LT	582	46%	3.675433	10%	4.91468	4.91468	100.00%	13.3717
Commercial/Industrial-HT	29	2%	26.22357	74%	28.58328	28.58328	100.00%	10.89984
Others	217	17%	4.785379	13%	4.189846	4.189846	100.00%	8.755516
	1256	100%	35.61103	100%	38.2901	38.2901	100.00%	10.75231

1.3 Category wise Consumers and Energy sales for the FY 2022-23

Table 3





1.4. Infrastructure details

Form-Details of Input Infrastructure								
1	Parameters	Total	Covere d during in audit	Verified by Auditor in Sample Check	Remarks (Source of data)			
I	Number of circles	1	1		In CoPA there is no Circle or Division wise formations. However,the entire CoPA is treated as a Circle.			
ii	Number of divisions	0						
iii	Number of sub- divisions	0						
iv	Number of feeders	15	15	11	List Provided by the DISCOM and AMI Software.			
V	Number of DTs	30	30	0	List provided by the DISCOM			
Vi	Number of consumers	1256	1256	126	Through SAP			

Table 4

1.4.1. Voltage based Consumers and metering infrastructure

2	Parameters	66kV and above	33kV	11/22kV	LT
. :	Number of conventional metered	0	0		00
a 1.	NL 1 C id l d	0	0	0	00
ii	Number of consumers with 'smart' meters	0	0	36	1132
iii	Number of consumers with 'smart prepaid' meters	0	0	0	0
iv	Number of consumers with 'AMR' meters	0	0	0	0
v	Number of consumers with 'non- smart prepaid' meters	0	0	0	0
vi	Number of unmetered consumers	0	0	0	0
vii	Number of total consumers	0	0	36	1220

ANNUAL ENERGY AUDIT REPORT OF COCHIN PORT AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

	Number of conventionally metered				
b i	Distribution Transformers	0	0	0	0
	Number of DTs with				
ii	communicable meters	0	0	0	0
iii	Number of unmetered DTs	0	0	30	0
iv	Number of total Transformers	0	0	30	0
c. i.	Number of metered feeders	0	0	11	0
	Number of feeders with				
ii	communicable meters	0	0	11	0
iii	Number of unmetered feeders	0	0	4	
iv	Number of total feeders	0	0	15	
d.	Line length (ckt km)	0	0	85	105
e.	Length of Aerial Bunched Cables (kM)	0	0	0	0
f.	Length of Underground Cables (kM)	0	0	85	

0

Table 5

1.5. FEEDER WISE ENERGY DISTRIBUTION IN WILLINGDON ISLAND

(Feeder wise loss could not be assessed due to the absence of functional meters in DTRs .

	Load distribution through the Feeders from the Willingdon substation for the year 2022-23								
S.NO	Feeder Name	Feeder Metering Status (Metered/ unmetered/ AMI/AMR)	Status of Meter (Functional/Non- functional)	Feeder Type (Agri/ Industrial/Mixed)	CT/PT ratio	Import (MU)	Export (MU)	% load	
1	MNC	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.00	0.30	1.1	
2	NTRO KV	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.00	2.50	9.3	
3	Q9 1	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.00	6.69	24.8	
4	Q92	AMI	Functional	mixed	200/5	0.00	4.40	16.3	
5	MH2	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.00	2.45	9.1	
6	UTL	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.00	2.59	9.6	
7	Q93	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.00	2.30	8.5	
8	MH3	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.00	0.00	0.0	
9	STN TR	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.00	0.08	0.3	
10	PENNA	AMI	Functional	Commercial	200/5	0.00	4.80	17.8	
	NTRO								
11	A2	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.00	0.91	3.4	
				Total		0.00	27.01	100.0	

1.6. Details of Energy conservation measures implemented by the DISCOM

A. Impi	DETAILS OF ENERGY EFFICIENCY IN ENE emented	' IMPROVEMENT MI RGY ACHIEVED ANE OTH	FORM 3 (2022- [Refer rule 3(2 ASURES IMPLEM PROGRESS MAD HER RECOMMENT	23) [2]] IENTED, INVES E IN THE IMPL DATIONS	TMENT, INVESTM EMENTATION OF	IENT MAI	DE AND SAVING	\$
Sl.No.	Description of energy efficiency improvements measure	Category	Investment (Lakh Rupees)	Verified savings (Lakh Rupees)	Verified energy savings per annum	Units	Fuel	Remarks
1	Replacement of SON lights with LED light	Lighting System	6.696	5.74	127583	kWh	Electricity	Electricity cost =Rs 4.5 per
2	Replacement of old AC units with latest BEE rating units	Air Conditioning System	4.8	0.23	5103	kWh	Electricity	KWII
3	Conventional tube lights with LED tubes lights.	Lighting System	0.66	0.64	14288.4			

B. Under implementation

51.NO.	improvements measure	Category	Investment (Rupees) estimated	Verified savings (Lakh Rupees) estimated	energy savings estimated	Units	Fuel	Status of implementation
1	Replacement of SON lights to LED lights for high mast etc.	Lighting System	29.3	1.84	40824	kWh	Electricity	Mar-24
2	Conversion of 3.3KV distribution system to 11 KV system.	Electrical System	27.08	2.02	44906.4	kWh	Electricity	Mar-24
2	{					- 23	1	Nacional

ANNUAL ENERGY AUDIT REPORT OF COCHIN PORT AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

A. Impl	DETAILS OF ENERGY EFFICIENCY IN ENEI	IMPROVEMENT MI RGY ACHIEVED ANI OTI	FORM 3 (2022- [Refer rule 3(2 EASURES IMPLEM) PROGRESS MAD HER RECOMMENT	23) ENTED, INVES E IN THE IMPL DATIONS	TMENT, INVESTM EMENTATION OF	IENT MAI	DE AND SAVING	is
Sl.No.	Description of energy efficiency improvements measure	Category	Investment (Lakh Rupees)	Verified savings (Lakh Rupees)	Verified energy savings per annum	Units	Fuel	Remarks
3	Replacement of AC units with latest 3-5 star rating AC units .	Air Conditioning System	14	3.67	81648	kWh	Electricity	Mar-24

Signature & work

Name of the energy manager: Mr. Sudalaikan Regd. No.: CEM-300510 Email ID: <u>sskannanme@gmail.com</u>

Name of the company: Cochin Port Authority Full address: Wellington Island, Ernakulam, Kerala-682009 Contact Name: Mrs.Jayalakshmy.S Email address: Jayalakshmi@cochinport.gov.in



Gua Signature

Name of the Accredited Energy Auditor: Mr.TN Agarwal Certified Detail: AEA-0089



Seal

2. Back ground

2.1 Extent of Regulations and role of BEE

The Bureau of Energy Efficiency (BEE), through Ministry of Power, Government of India, notified the regulations viz. 'Bureau of Energy Efficiency (Manner and Intervals for Conduct of Energy Audit in Electricity Distribution Companies) Regulations, 2021' vide Notification No.18/1/BEE/DISCOM/2021 dated 6th October 2021, and subsequent amendment issued thereof on 28th Oct. 2022. The extent of regulations specifies the following key aspects related to energy accounting and audit for electricity distribution companies.

- I. Intervals of time for conduct of periodic energy accounting and annual energy audit and report submission thereof.
- II. Pre-requisites for annual energy audit and periodic energy accounting.
- III. Reporting requirements for annual energy audit and periodic energy accounting.
- IV. Manner of annual energy audit and periodic energy accounting.
- V. Prioritization and preparation of action plan and
- VI. Structure of annual energy audit report

These regulations have been issued under the ambit of Energy Conservation Act, 2001, with an overall objective to reduce inefficiencies and losses in distribution sector thereby ensuring financial and economic viability of DISCOMs. These regulations shall apply to all electricity distribution companies specified as designated consumer. They shall come into force on the date of their publication in the Official Gazette.

1. Intervals of time for conduct of annual energy audit. - (1) Every electricity distribution company shall conduct an annual energy audit for every financial year and submit the annual energy audit report to the Bureau and respective State Designated Agency which will be made available on the website of the electricity distribution company within a period of four months from the expiry of the relevant financial year. Provided that, on the commencement of these regulations, the first annual energy audit of every electricity distribution company shall be conducted within six months from the date of such commencement, by taking into account the energy accounting of electricity distribution company for the financial year immediately preceding the date of the commencement of these regulations.

2. Intervals of time for conduct of periodic energy accounting. -

(1) Every electricity distribution company shall —

(a) ensure that all feeder wise, circle wise and division wise periodic energy accounting shall be conducted by the energy manager of the electricity distribution company for each quarter of the financial year; and

(b) submit the periodic energy accounting report to the Bureau and respective State Designated Agency and also made available on the website of electricity distribution company within forty-five days from the date of the periodic energy accounting.

(2) After the commencement of these regulations, every electricity distribution company shall, notwithstanding anything in sub-regulation (1),

(a) Conduct its first periodic energy accounting, for the last quarter of the financial year immediately preceding the date of such commencement; and

(b) Conduct its subsequent periodic energy accounting for each quarter of the financial year for a period of two financial years from the date of such commencement,

5. Pre-requisites for annual energy audit and periodic energy accounting — Save as otherwise provided, every electricity distribution company shall undertake all actions as may be required for the annual energy audit and periodic energy accounting before the start of the relevant financial year, including the following actions, namely: —

(a) the identification and mapping of all of the electrical network assets;

(b) the identification and mapping of high tension and low-tension consumers;

(c) the development and implementation of information technology enabled energy accounting and audit system, including associated software;

(d) the electricity distribution company shall ensure the installation of functional meters for all consumers, transformers and feeders: Provided that meter installation may be done in a phased manner within a period of three financial years from the date of the commencement of these regulations in accordance with the trajectory set out in the First Schedule;

(e)All distribution transformers (other than high voltage distribution system upto 25kVA and other distribution system below 25 kVA) shall be metered with communicable meters. And

existing noncommunicable distribution transformer meters shall be replaced with communicable meters and integrated with advanced metering infrastructure;

(f)The electricity distribution company shall establish an information technology enabled system to create energy accounting reports without any manual interference: Provided that such system may be established—

(i) within a period of three years from the date of the commencement of these regulations in case of urban and priority area consumers; and

(ii) within five years from the date of the commencement of these regulations in case of rural consumers;

(g) the electricity distribution company shall create a centralized energy accounting and audit cell comprising of— (i) a nodal officer, an energy manager and an information technology manager, having professional experience of not less than five years;

(ii) a financial manager having professional experience of not less than five years; (h) any other requisite that Bureau may direct for energy audit and accounting purpose.

6. Reporting requirements for annual energy audit and periodic energy accounting

- (1) Every electricity distribution company shall designate a nodal officer, who shall be a full-time employee of the electricity distribution company in the rank of the Chief Engineer or above, for the purpose of reporting of the annual energy audit and periodic energy accounting and communicate the same to the Bureau.
- (2) Every electricity distribution company shall ensure that the energy accounting data is generated from a metering system or till such time the metering system is not in place, by an agreed method of assumption as may be prescribed by the State Commission.
- (3) Metering of distribution transformers at High Voltage Distribution System up to 25KVA can be done on cluster meter installed by each electricity distribution company.
- (4) The energy accounting and audit system and software shall be developed to create monthly, quarterly and yearly energy accounting reports.
- (5) Every electricity distribution company shall provide the details of the information technology system in place as specified in clause (f) of regulation 5 that ensures minimal manual intervention in creating the energy accounting reports and any manual intervention of any nature, in respect of the period specified therein, shall be clearly indicated in the periodic energy accounting report.

7. Manner of annual energy audit and periodic energy accounting. -

(1) Every annual energy audit and periodic energy accounting under these regulations shall be conducted in the following manner, namely: —

(a) verification of existing pattern of energy distribution across periphery of electricity distribution company; and

(b) verification of accounted energy flow submitted by electricity distribution company at all applicable voltage levels of the distribution network, —

(i) energy flow between transmission and 66kV/33kV/11kV incoming distribution feeders;
(ii) energy flow between 66kV/33kV outgoing and 11kV/6.6kV incoming feeders;

(iii) energy flow between 11 kV/6.6kV feeders and distribution transformers, or high voltage distribution system;

(iv) energy flow between distribution transformer, or high voltage distribution system to end consumer, including ring main system;

(v) energy flow between Feeder to end-consumer; and

(vi) energy flow between 66/33/11 kV directly to consumer.

(2) The accredited energy auditor, in consultation with the nodal officer of the electricity distribution company shall, —

(a) develop a scope of work for the conduct of energy audit required under these regulations;

(b) agree on best practice procedures on accounting of energy distributed across the network; and

(c) collect data on energy received, and distributed, covered within the scope of energy audit.

(3) The accredited energy auditor shall— (a) verify the accuracy of the data collected in consultation with the nodal officer of the electricity distribution companies as per standard practice to assess the validity of the data collected; and (b) analyse and process the data with respect to—

(i) consistency of data monitoring compared to the collected data;

(ii) recommendations to facilitate energy accounting and improve energy efficiency; and

(iii) with respect to the purpose of energy accounting in reducing losses for the electricity distribution company

TRAJECTORY FOR METER INSTALLATION

Timeline for metering—

- (i) 100% Communicable Feeder Metering integrated with AMI, by 31 st December 2022 along-with replacement of existing non-communicable feeder meters.
- (ii) All Distribution Transformers (other than HVDS DT upto 25kVA and other DTs below 25 kVA) shall be metered with communicable meters. Communicable DT Metering for the following areas / consumers to be completed by December 2023 and in balance areas by December 2025:
 - All Electricity Divisions of 500 AMRUT cities, with AT&C Losses > 15%
 - All Union Territories (for areas with technical difficulty, non-communicable meters may be installed);
 - All Industrial and Commercial consumers;
 - All Government offices at Block level and above;
 - Other high loss areas i.e. rural areas with losses more than 25% and urban areas with losses more than 15%. Further, existing non-communicable Distribution Transformer meters to be replaced with communicable meters integrated with AMI, within the timelines applicable to the respective areas.
- (iii) Prepaid Smart Consumer Metering to be completed for all directly connected meters and AMR in case of other meters, by December 2023 in the following areas:
 - All Electricity Divisions of 500 AMRUT cities, with AT&C Losses > 15%; o All Union Territories (for areas with technical difficulty, prepaid meters to be installed);
 - All Industrial and Commercial consumers;
 - All Government offices at Block level and above; o Other high loss areas i.e. rural areas with losses more than 25% and urban areas with losses more than 15%. The balance areas and consumers may be taken up in a phased manner subsequently. However, Distribution Companies can additionally cover any other areas as well as agricultural consumers, at their option by December 2023. Further, in rural / hilly areas with connectivity or communication issues, wherein installation of smart meters may not be feasible, prepaid meters may be opted for
- (iv) Consumer Metering:
 - 98% by FY 2022-23
 - 99% by FY 2023-24

Meter	2022-23	2023-24	2024-25
Feeder Metering	98.5%	99.5%	995%
DT Metering	90%	95%	98%
Consumer Metering	93%	96%	98%

Table 7

2.2 Purpose of audit and accounting Report

Bureau of Energy Efficiency (BEE) through Ministry of Power, Government of India issued regulations for the Conduct of Mandatory Annual Energy Audit and Periodic Energy Accounting in DISCOMs vide regulation No:

As per the regulation, all Electricity Distribution Companies are mandated to conduct annual energy audit and periodic energy accounting on quarterly basis.

Owing to the impact of energy auditing on the entire distribution and retail supply business and absence of an existing framework with dedicated focus on the same, it was imperative to develop a set of comprehensive guidelines that all Distribution utilities across India can follow and adhere to.

Accordingly, Regulations on Manner and Intervals for Conduct of Energy Audit and Accounting in Electricity Distribution Companies has been framed. Energy Accounting means accounting of all energy inflows at various voltage levels in the distribution periphery of the network, including renewable energy generation and open access consumers, and energy consumption by the end consumers. Energy accounting and a consequent annual energy audit would help to identify areas of high loss and pilferage, and thereafter focus efforts to take corrective action.

These Regulations for Energy audit in Electricity Distribution Companies provides broad framework for conduct of Annual Energy Audit though and Quarterly Periodic Energy Accounting with necessary Pre-requisites and reporting requirements to be met.

2.3 Period of the Energy Audit

The period of the audit is for the year 2022-23. This is the third annual energy audit in the CoPA, as per the BEE Regulations.

3. Introduction of DISCOM

3.1 Name and address of the DISCOM (DC)

Cochin Port Authority (CoPA)

P.O. Willingdon Island

Ernakulam -682009,

Kerala.

3.1 .1 Name and details of Energy Manager and authorized signatory of DISCOM

1	Energy Manager	2	Nodal officer
	Mrs. Jayalakshmy. S		Mr. Ajayakumar R.S,
	Asst. Exe. Engineer (Ele)- EM		Executive Engineer (Elec)
	Cochin Port Authority		Cochin Port Authority
	Willingdon Island, Kochi,		Willingdon Island, Kochi,
	Kerala 682009		Kerala 682009
	Whether CEA/CEM- Nil		Phone: 9444610664
	Phone No: 9496450704		
	Email: jayalakshmi@cochinport.gov.in		

Table 8 A

3.1.2 Centralised Energy accounts and Audit Cell in CoPA (Team members)

S.No	Name of the Officer	Official designation	Role
1.	Shri Ajayakumar R.S	Executive Engineer (Elec)	Nodal officer
2.	Smt Jayalakshmy S	Assistant Executive Engineer (Ele)	Energy Manager
3.	Sri Vinod C	Senior Deputy Director EDP	I.T Manager
4	Smt Surya Madhu	Senior Accounts officer	Finance Manager

3.2 Summary profile of the DISCOM with salient features

About the DISCOM

Cochin Port Authority (CoPA) is a Body Corporate under the Major Port Authorities Act, 2021 (formerly Cochin Port Trust).

CoPA is also a Deemed Electricity Distribution Licensee as per Electricity Act 2003 and a notified DC (**DC No: DIS0048KL**) under the PAT Cycle VII vide notification No: S.O.4552(E) dated 26th September 2022 by the Ministry of Power, GOI.

CoPA is purchasing electricity from M/s Kerala State Electricity Board Limited, a major distribution licensee and distributes to the consumers in Port area, under its jurisdictional power in Willingdon Island, Vallarpadam & Puthuvypin area. CoPA is availing 6.5MVA power at 110 KV system from KSEBL in Willingdon Island and 3 MVA power at 11 kV Voltage at Vallarpadam and distributing electricity to the consumers within the premises of the Port

Presently, CoPA has a 110kV/11kV Substation with 2Nos 10/12.5MVA power transformers and associated switchgears and control gears at Wellington Island and 11 kV receiving Station at Vallarpadam .11kV power is distributed to the consumers through 11kV UG Cables / dedicated 11 kV UG Cables and linked through Ring Main system for redundancy in supply /providing 24x7 days supply.LT feeding is by means of LT OH/ UG cable lines. At present there are 1256 consumers of which 36 are HT Consumers and 1220 are LT consumers. Consumer metering is 100% SMART meters for all category of consumers. However selfconsumption and street light supply are metered through SMART meters/Electronic meters. Action has already been taken to purchase SMART meters to replacing the electronic meters with SMART meters. SMART Meters are with AMI features with prepaid facility. All the SMART Meters are connected to a centralised AMI software system through mobile network using GPRS. The billing and accounting are done using SAP System.

There are eleven 11 KV feeders emanating from 110/11 KV substation at Willingdon Island and four 11 kV feeders at Vallarpadam & Puthuvypin area. There are 30 numbers of 11kV/415Volt and 11 kV/3.3 kV distribution transformers .CoPA has commissioned 100kWp and 150kWp grid connected solar plant . CoPA has also permitted Net metering facility for solar plants of 4 LT and HT Prosumers. Import/Export of energy from the solar plants are accounted through SMART meter. The energy inputs from the solar plants are also covered in the Energy audit.

Key Projects

RDSS Project

CoPA has obtained sanction for an amount of Rs 15.13 Crores for the modernisation and loss reduction projects under the Revamped Distribution Sector Scheme (RDSS) of Ministry of Power Govt of India. Additional infrastructure proposed through RDSS is the replacement of old cables, transformers and Ring main units, addition of 3 nos. 11 kV panels, completion of metering for 11 kV feeders, DTR metering and SCADA project. The above works will be commissioned during the financial year 2023-24 & 2024-25. All the infrastructures commissioned during the FY 2023-24 & 2024-25 will be covered under the scope of energy auditing / accounting.

Other Projects

CoPA has proposed for enhancement of contract demand to 8 MVA at Vallarpadam for meeting the immediate power requirement of the consumers. So the total contract demand at Vallarpadam will be enhanced to 8 MVA in 11 kV system through multiple feeders by December 2023.

Further CoPA proposes to provide shore power supply to International Cruise Vessels calling at Cochin Port., as part of Maritime India Vision 2030(MIV 2030). The contract demand of 6 MVA power supply, CoPA propose to avail Green Energy through open Access, for this project. The project is expected to be commissioned in FY 2024-25. The contract demand of CoPA at Willington Island will be enhanced to 12.5 MVA on commissioning of the shore power supply. CoPA proposes to implement 1.5MWp grid connected floating solar plant which is expected to be commissioned by March 2024.

3.3 Asset details

3.3.1 Infrastructure details

Form-Details of Input Infrastructure							
1	Parameters	Total	Covere d during in audit	Verified by Auditor in Sample Check	Remarks (Source of data)		
I	Number of circles	1	1	1	In CoPA there is no Circle or Division wise formations. However, the entire CoPA is treated as a Circle.		
Ii	Number of divisions	0					
Iii	Number of sub- divisions	0					
Iv	Number of feeders	15	15	11	List provided by the DISCOM and AMI Software .		
V	Number of DTs	30	30	0	List provided by the DISCOM.		
Vi	Number of consumers	1256	1256	126	SAP		

Table 9

3.3.2 Voltage wise consumers metering infrastructures and other assets.

2	Parameters	66kV and above	33kV	11/22kV	LT
I	Number of conventional metered consumers	0	0	0	88
Ii	Number of consumers with 'smart' meters	0	0	36	1132
Iii	Number of consumers with 'smart prepaid' meters	0	0	0	0
Iv	Number of consumers with 'AMR' meters	0	0	0	0
v	Number of consumers with 'non- smart prepaid' meters	0	0	0	0
Vi	Number of unmetered consumers	0	0	0	0
Vii	Number of total consumers	0	0	36	1220
b.i.	Number of conventionally metered Distribution Transformers	0	0	0	0

ANNUAL ENERGY AUDIT REPORT OF COCHIN PORT AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

	Number of DTs with				
Ii	communicable meters	0	0	0	0
Iii	Number of unmetered DTs	0	0	30	0
Iv	Number of total Transformers	0	0	30	
c.i.	Number of metered feeders	0	0	11	0
	Number of feeders with				
Ii	communicable meters	0	0	11	0
Iii	Number of unmetered feeders	0	0	4	
Iv	Number of total feeders	0	0	15	
d.	Line length (ckt km)	0		85	105
e.	Length of Aerial Bunched Cables (kM)	0	0	0	0
f.	Length of Underground Cables (kM)	0	0	85	

Table 10

3.3.3 Distribution Transformer details

S.NO	Asset details	Unit	Quantity
1.	110kV/11 kV 12.5 MVA Power Transformers	No	2
2	POWER FACTOR CAPACITOR 1000 kVAR	NO	2
2.	11 kV Feeders	No	15
3.	Distribution Transformer 11kV/415 V 1250 kVA	No	2
4	Distribution Transformer 11kV/415 V 1000 kVA	No	1
5	Distribution Transformer 11kV/415 V 800 kVA	No	3
6	Distribution Transformer 11kV/415 V 630 kVA	No	9
7	Distribution Transformer 11kV/415 V 500 kVA	No	8
8	Distribution Transformer 11kV/415 V 315 kVA	No	3
9	Distribution Transformer 3.3 kV/433 V 300 kVA	No	1
11	Distribution Transformer 3.3 kV/415 V 250 kVA	No	3

S.NO	Energy input details	Units	Quantity
A	Energy purchased	MU	36,534
B	Net input energy (at DISCOM Periphery	MU	36.534
	after adjusting the transmission losses and		
С	Energy billed	MU	35.611
D	T& D Loss	MU	0.923
E	% T&D Loss	%	2.53
G	Amount of Energy billed	Rs (Crores)	38.29
Н	Amount of collection	Rs (Crores)	38.29
Н	Collection efficiency	%	100
Ι	% AT&C Loss	%	2.53

3.3.4 Performance summary of the CoPA for the FY 2022-23

Table 12

3.3.5 Energy Input Particulars of the CoPA for the FY 2022-23

Voltage level	Particulars	MU
	Long-Term Conventional	27.054
	Medium Conventional	0.000
	Short Term Conventional	0.000
	Banking	0.000
	Long-Term Renewable energy	0.000
66kV and	Medium and Short-Term RE	0.000
above	Captive, open access input	0.000
	Sale of surplus power	0.000
	Quantum of inter-state transmission loss	0.000
	Power procured from inter-state sources	27.054
	Power at state transmission boundary	27.054
	Long-Term Conventional	0.000
	Medium Conventional	0.000
	Short Term Conventional	0.000
	Banking	0.000
221-37	Long-Term Renewable energy	0.000
33KV	Medium and Short-Term RE	0.000
	Captive, open access input	0.000
	Sale of surplus power	0.000
	Quantum of intra-state transmission loss	0.000
	Power procured from intra-state sources	0.000
	Input in DISCOM wires network	0.000
33 kV	Renewable Energy Procurement	0.000

	Small capacity conventional/ biomass/ hydro plants Procurement	0.000
	Captive, open access input	0.000
11 kV	Renewable Energy Procurement	0.000
	Small capacity conventional/ biomass/ hydro plants Procurement	0.000
	Sales Migration Input	9.144
LT	Renewable Energy Procurement	0.336
	Sales Migration Input	0.000
	Energy Embedded within DISCOM wires network	0.000
	Total Energy Available/ Input	36.534

Table 13

3.3.6 Energy sales Particulars of the CoPA for the FY 2022-23

4	Voltage	Energy Sales Particulars	MU
	level		
i	LT Level	DISCOM' consumers	7.402
		Demand from open access, captive	0.000
		Embedded generation used at LT level	0.000
		Sale at LT level	7.402
		Quantum of LT level losses	**
		Energy Input at LT level	7.402
ii	11 kV	DISCOM' consumers	28.209
	Level	Demand from open access, captive	0.000
		Embedded generation at 11 kV level used	0.000
		Sales at 11 kV level	28.209
		Quantum of Losses at 11 kV	**
		Energy input at 11 kV level	36.198
iii	33 kV	DISCOM' consumers	0.000
	Level	Demand from open access, captive	0.000
		Embedded generation at 33 kV or below level	0.000
		Sales at 33 kV level	0.000
		Quantum of Losses at 33 kV	0.000
		Energy input at 33kV Level	0.000
iv	> 33 kV	DISCOM' consumers	0.000
		Demand from open access, captive	0.000
		Cross border sale of energy	0.000
		Sale to other DISCOMs	0.000
		Banking	0.000
		Energy input at > 33kV Level	0.000

Sales at 66kV and above (EHV)	0.000
Total Energy Sales	35.611
Total Energy input	36.534
T& D LOSS MU	0.923
%	2.53

**HT and LT Level losses could not be assessed due to the absence of Feeder meters and DTR meters

Table 14

3.3.7 Category wise consumers

Period From 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023									
Consumer pro		Energy pa	arameters	Comm					
Consumer category	Total Number of connectio ns (Nos)	% of number of connecti ons	Total energy	% of energy consump tion	Billed Amount in Rs. Crore	Collected Amount in Rs. Crore	Collectio n Efficiency	Average billing rate	
Residential	428	34%	0.926641	3%	0.602286	0.602286	100.00%	6.499671	
Agricultural	0	0%	0	0%	0	0	0.00%	0	
Commercial/Industrial-LT	582	46%	3.675433	10%	4.91468	4.91468	100.00%	13.3717	
Commercial/Industrial-HT	29	2%	26.22357	74%	28.58328	28.58328	100.00%	10.89984	
Others	217	17%	4.785379	13%	4.189846	4.189846	100.00%	8.755516	
	1256	100%	35.61103	100%	38.2901	38.2901	100.00%	10.75231	

Table 15



Fig 4

3.4 Details of the Energy Conservation measures implemented under the DISCOM

System

FORM 3 (2022-23) [Refer rule 3(2)] DETAILS OF ENERGY EFFICIENCY IMPROVEMENT MEASURES IMPLEMENTED, INVESTMENT, INVESTMENT MADE AND SAVINGS IN ENERGY ACHIEVED AND PROGRESS MADE IN THE IMPLEMENTATION OF A. Implemented OTHER RECOMMENDATIONS									
Sl.No.	Description of energy efficiency improvements measure	Category	Investment (Lakh Rupees)	Verified savings (Lakh Rupees)	Verified energy savings per annum	Units	Fuel	Remarks	
1	Replacement of SON lights with LED light	Lighting System	6.696	5.74	127583	kWh	Electricity	Electricity cost =Rs 4.5 per	
2	Replacement of old AC units with latest BEE rating units	Air Conditioning System	4.8	0.23	5103	kWh	Electricity	RWn	
3	Conventional tube lights with LED	Lighting	0.44			1 200			

0.66

0.64

14288.4

B. Under implementation

tubes lights.

SLING.	Description of energy efficiency improvements measure	Category	Investment (Rupees) estimated	Verified savings (Lakh Rupees) estimated	energy savings estimated	Units	Fuel	Status of implementation
	Replacement of SON lights to LED lights for high mast etc.	Lighting System	29.3	1.84	40824	kWh	Electricity	Mar-24
	Conversion of 3.3KV distribution system to 11 KV system.	Electrical System	27.08	2.02	44906.4	kWh	Electricity	Mar-24

C

ANNUAL ENERGY AUDIT REPORT OF COCHIN PORT AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

Sl.No.	Description of energy efficiency improvements measure	Category	Investment (Lakh Rupees)	Verified savings (Lakh Rupees)	Verified energy savings per annum	Units	Fuel	Remarks
3	Replacement of AC units with latest 3-5 star rating AC units .	Air Conditioning System	14	3.67	81648	kWh	Electricity	Mar-24

FORM 3 (2022-23) [Refer rule 3(2)] DETAILS OF ENERGY EFFICIENCY IMPROVEMENT MEASURES IMPLEMENTED, INVESTMENT, INVESTMENT MADE AND SAVINGS IN ENERGY ACHIEVED AND PROGRESS MADE IN THE IMPLEMENTATION OF OTHER RECOMMENDATIONS

Signature

Name of the energy manager: Mr. Sudalaikan Regd. No.: CEM-300510 Email ID: <u>sskannanme@gmail.com</u>

Name of the company: Cochin Port Authority Full address: Wellington Island, Ernakulam, Kerala-682009 Contact Name: Mrs.Jayalakshmy.S Email address: Jayalakshmi@cochinport.gov.in



Signature Charden

Name of the Accredited Energy Auditor: Mr.TN Agarwal Certified Detail: AEA-0089



Seal

4. Energy flow analysis

4.1. Energy flow across 5 service levels

In CoPA presently the Energy consumption is only in 11 KV and LT Levels. Power is received in Willingdon Island at 110 kV and stepdown to 11 kV level. Renewable injection is at LT levels. Due to non-installation of meters in all the 11 kV feeders and DTRs, losses cannot be segregated at feeder level and DTR level. However, the energy is distributed by the CoPA in two separate geographical areas without any border sharing. Hence presently loss can be assessed only at the DISCOM level and at the area level in the two distribution areas. The power input at the two areas is indicated in the following diagram.



Fig 5

Voltage level	Particulars	MU
	Long-Term Conventional	27.054
	Medium Conventional	0.000
	Short Term Conventional	0.000
66kV and	Banking	0.000
	Long-Term Renewable energy	0.000
	Medium and Short-Term RE	0.000
above	Captive, open access input	0.000
	Sale of surplus power	0.000
	Quantum of inter-state transmission loss	0.000
	Power procured from inter-state sources	27.054
	Power at state transmission boundary	27.054
	Long-Term Conventional	0.000
	Medium Conventional	0.000
	Short Term Conventional	0.000
	Banking	0.000
221 37	Long-Term Renewable energy	0.000
33KV	Medium and Short-Term RE	0.000
	Captive, open access input	0.000
	Sale of surplus power	0.000
	Quantum of intra-state transmission loss	0.000
	Power procured from intra-state sources	0.000
	Input in DISCOM wires network	0.000
33 kV	Renewable Energy Procurement	0.000
	Small capacity conventional/ biomass/ hydro plants Procurement	0.000
	Captive, open access input	0.000
11 kV	Renewable Energy Procurement	0.000
	Small capacity conventional/ biomass/ hydro plants Procurement	0.000
	Sales Migration Input	9.144
LT	Renewable Energy Procurement	0.336
	Sales Migration Input	0.000
	Energy Embedded within DISCOM wires network	0.000
	Total Energy Available/ Input	36.534

4.1.1 ENERGY INPUT PARTICULARS OF CoPA for the FY 2022-23

Table 16
4	Voltage level	Energy Sales Parti	culars	MU	
i	LT Level	DISCOM' consumers		7.402	
		Demand from open access, c	aptive	0.000	
		Embedded generation used a	0.000		
		Sale at LT level	Sale at LT level		
		Quantum of LT level losses		**	
		Energy Input at LT level		**	
ii	11 kV Level	DISCOM' consumers		28.209	
		Demand from open access, c	aptive	0.000	
		Embedded generation at 11 h	cV level used	0.000	
		Sales at 11 kV level		28.209	
		Quantum of Losses at 11 kV		**	
		Energy input at 11 kV level		36.198	
iii	33 kV Level	DISCOM' consumers		0.000	
		Demand from open access, c	aptive	0.000	
		Embedded generation at 33 l	V or below	0.000	
		level			
		Sales at 33 kV level		0.000	
		Quantum of Losses at 33 kV		0.000	
		Energy input at 33kV Level		0.000	
iv	> 33 kV	DISCOM' consumers		0.000	
		Demand from open access, c	aptive	0.000	
		Cross border sale of energy	-	0.000	
		Sale to other DISCOMs		0.000	
		Banking		0.000	
		Energy input at > 33kV Leve	el	27.054	
		Sales at 66kV and above (E	CHV)	0.000	
		Tota	al Energy Sales	35.611	
		Tota	ll Energy input	36.534	
	T&]	D LOSS	MU	0.923	
			%	2.53	

4.1.2 Energy sales Particulars for the FY 2022-23

**HT and LT category level losses could not be assessed due to the absence of Feeder meters and DTR meters

4.2 Validation of metered data

Ve	rification an	d Validation	of Ener	gy input	and 11	kV Feeders at Substations
		Metering	Number of	Functional	Sample	
S.NO	Energy Particulars	infrastructure	meters	status	checked	Remarks
	ENERGY INPUT					
1	(KSEBL)					
						*Only supplier (KSEBL) meter in the CoPA
						premises.There is no communicable meter on
а	Willingdon Island	110kV Input supply	*1	0		the CoPA side.
						Energy input validated by verifying the Purchase bills
b	Vallarpadam	11 Kv Input supply	*1	0		*Only supplier (KSEBL) meter in the CoPA premises.There is no communicable meter on the CoPA side.
						Energy input validated by verifying the Purchase bills
2	Renewable Energy	/				
а	150 kW	1	1	1	1	Verified the monthly data provided by the DISCOM taken from AMI Software
b	100 kW	1	1	1	1	Do-
						Verified the monthly data provided by the
b	Solar prosumers	4	4	4	4	DISCOM taken from AMI Software
С	Small DG Sets	3	3	3	3	Do
3	11 kV Feeders					
						Validated both by site verification and by
	Willingdon Island	11	11	11	11	verifying the Software Data.
	Vallarpadam	4	4	0	4	Meters not functional

Table 18

4.2.1 Physical verification of meters at Substation

Willingdon Island

S.NO	FEEDER NAME	Meter S.NO	Meter reading	Date of reading
1	Q91	GP4409885	551281.3	13/07/23
2	Q92	GP4409882	394589.7	13/07/23
3	UTL	GP4409883	0315231	13/07/23
4	NTRO A2	GP4409899	40429.4	13/07/23

Table 19

4.3. Verification and Validation of input energy

4.3.1.1 FOW							
Consumer	No: 135541	000263	6				
Contract de							
	M	ID Char	ges	E	Energy char	rges	Total charges
	Maximu	Rate					
	m	/KV	MD	Consumpti	Unit	Energy	
MONTH	demand	А	Charges	on	rate	charges	Total charges
May-22	6588	340	2239920	2604600	6.10	15888060	18152440
Jun-22	6578	340	2236520	2650350	6.10	16167135	18416915
Jul-22	4875	380	1852500	2130600	6.25	13316250	14684673
Aug-22	4875	380	1852500	2002950	6.25	12518437.5	14057977
Sep-22	4875	380	1852500	1973850	6.25	12335312.5	13880649
Oct-22	4875	380	1852500	2043300	6.25	12770625	14303859
Nov-22	4958	380	1884040	2134200	6.25	13338750	14890412
Dec-22	5040	380	1915200	2239350	6.25	13995937.5	15581412
Jan-23	4982	380	1893160	2301900	6.25	14386875	15920363
Feb-23	5772	380	219336	2242200	6.25	14013750	15856766
Mar-23	6024	380	2289120	2165250	6.25	13532812.5	15483612
Apr-23	6376	380	2422880	2565150	6.25	16032187.5	18054277
Total				27053700			

4.3.1. Verification of Purchase bill

4.3.1.1 Power purchase details of the Willingdon Island

Table 20

4.3.1.2 Power Purchase details of the Vallarpadam & Puthuvypin area

Consumer								
Contract demand 3000								
	I	MD Charg	ges		Energy cha	rges		
	Maximu	_		~		_		
	m	Rate	MD	Consump		Energy	Total	
MONTH	demand	KVA	Charges	tion	Unit rate	charges	charges	
May-22	2250	340	765000	1141850	6.10	6965285.0	7730285	
Jun-22	2250	340	765000	816000	6.10	4977600.0	5970503	
Jul-22	2250	380	855000	691700	6.25	4323125.0	7809011	
Aug-22	2250	380	855000	695200	6.25	43451562.5	5264775	
Sep-22	2250	380	855000	647640	6.25	4047750.0	4939848	
Oct-22	2250	380	855000	703480	6.25	4396750.0	5163815	
Nov-22	2250	380	855000	851320	6.25	5320750.0	6182250	
Dec-22	2250	380	855000	698840	6.25	4367750.0	5429009	
Jan-23	2250	380	855000	703120	6.25	4394500.0	5323994	
Feb-23	2250	380	855000	648400	6.25	4052500.0	4991646	
Mar-23	2250	380	855000	664000	6.25	4150000	5084665	
Apr-23	2250	380	855000	882760	6.25	5517250	6432106	
Total				9144310				

4.3.2 Validation of Renewable energy

		Energy input to Distribution Grid					
		(1)	(2) Generation	n	(2) Tatala	
		Purchase	Solar	Solar	DG Sets	(3) Fotal: (1) + (2)	
			Port	Prosumers	Port		
	Willingdon island	26,04,600	23,970	1,112	835	26,30,517	
	Vallarpadam	1141850	0	0	0	11,41,850	
May 22	Total	37,46,450	23,970	1,112	835	37,72,367	
	Willingdon island	26,50,350	20,140	692	27	26,71,209	
	Vallarpadam	816000	0	0	0	8,16,000	
June-22	Total	34,66,350	20,140	692	27	34,87,209	
	Willingdon island	21,30,600	21,970	1,763	559	21,54,892	
	Vallarpadam	691700	0	20	0	6,91,720	
July-22	Total	28,22,300	21,970	1,783	559	28,46,612	
	Willingdon island	20,02,950	21,400	1,944	12	20,26,306	
	Vallarpadam	695200	0	320	0	6,95,520	
Aug 22	Total	26,98,150	21,400	2,264	12	27,21,826	
	Willingdon island	19,73,850	22,330	2,561	164	19,98,905	
	Vallarpadam	647640	0	184	0	6,47,824	
Sep 22	Total	26,21,490	22,330	2,745	164	26,46,729	
	Willingdon island	20,43,300	28,230	3,126	283	20,74,939	
	Vallarpadam	703480	0	296	0	7,03,776	
Oct -22	Total	27,46,780	28,230	3,422	283	27,78,715	
	Willingdon island	21,34,200	28,290	2,913	40	21,65,443	
	Vallarpadam	851320	0	96	0	8,51,416	
Nov-22	Total	29,85,520	28,290	3,009	40	30,16,859	
	Willingdon island	22,39,350	24,750	2,638	392	22,67,130	
	Vallarpadam	698840	0	360	0	6,99,200	
Dec-22	Total	29,38,190	24,750	2,998	392	29,66,330	
	Willingdon island	23,01,900	24,870	2,556	233	23,29,559	
	Vallarpadam	703120	0	232	0	7,03,352	
Jan-22	Total	30,05,020	24,870	2,788	233	30,32,911	
	Willingdon island	22,42,200	28,750	3,643	381	22,74,974	
	Vallarpadam	648400	0	560	0	6,48,960	
Feb-23	Total	28,90,600	28,750	4,203	381	29,23,934	
	Willingdon island	21,65,250	25,190	3,475	1,685	21,95,600	
	Vallarpadam	664000	0	8	0	6,64,008	
Mar-23	Total	28,29,250	25,190	3,483	1,685	28,59,608	
	Willingdon island	25,65,150	28,070	2,873	1,642	25,97,735	
	Vallarpadam	882760	0	439	0	8,83,199	
Apr-23	Total	34,47,910	28,070	3,312	1,642	34,80,934	

Month wise statements generated from Software

Consolidated total for the FY 2022-23 as per the monthly statement									
	Solar Plant (250 kW)	solar Prosumers	Total	Total (MU)	Total Renewable energy reported in the input statement (MU)				
Renewable energy	2,97,960	31,811	3,29,771.00	0.330	0.336024				
Energy through DG Sets	6,253			* 0.006253 0.336024	0				

4.3.3 Consolidated total of monthly statements for the FY 2022-23

*The meagre quantity of the DG energy in the LT System is added along with the renewable energy source due to nil provision to add the same in the LT system.

Table 23

Monthwise Energy Loss statement -From Division Loss statement							
	Energy ur	nits in kWh					
	2022-23 Q1	TOTAL					
Cons.	Billing	Purchase	Billed	Loss	% Loss		
Apr	May	36,68,562	35,51,412	1,17,150	3.193		
May	Jun	35,62,270	34,82,031	80,239	2.252		
Jun	Jul	28,75,356	27,56,132	1,19,224	4.146		
TOTAL		1,01,06,188	97,89,575	3,16,613	3.133		
	2022-23 Q2		TOTAL				
Cons.	Billing	Purchase	Billed	Loss	% Loss		
Jul	Aug	27,21,826	26,23,785	98,041	3.602		
Aug	Sep	26,46,729	26,30,494	16,235	0.613		
Sep	Oct	27,78,715	26,98,262	80,453	2.895		
TOTAL		81,47,270	79,52,541	1,94,729	2.390		
	2022-23 Q3	TOTAL					
Cons.	Billing	Purchase	Billed	Loss	% Loss		
Oct	Nov	30,16,859	29,51,870	64,989	2.154		
Nov	Dec	29,66,330	28,97,272	69,058	2.328		
Dec	Jan	30,32,911	29,71,509	61,402	2.025		
TOTAL		90,16,100	88,20,651	1,95,449	2.168		
	2022-23 Q4		TOTAL				
Cons.	Billing	Purchase	Billed	Loss	% Loss		
Jan	Feb	29,23,934	28,66,307	57,627	1.971		
Feb	Mar	28,59,608	27,96,114	63,494	2.220		
Mar	Apr	34,80,934	33,85,838	95,096	2.732		
TOTAL		92,64,476	90,48,259	2,16,217	2.334		
Tota	I for the year 2022-23	3,65,34,034	3,56,11,026	9,23,008	2.526		

4.3.4. Validation of Energy Sale Particulars

Table 24

5. Losses and Subsidy computation

5.1. Energy accounts of the Previous Years

S.NO	Energy input details		2020-21	2021-22
А	Energy purchased	MU	35.581	36.719
В	Net input energy (at DISCOM Periphery after adjusting the transmission losses and energy traded)	MU	35.581	36.719
С	Energy billed	MU	34.219	35.405
D	T& D Loss	MU	1.362	1.313
Е	% T&D Loss	%	3.82	3.577

Table 25

5.2 Input Energy, AT&C losses-aggregate, Voltage wise ,category wise and Area wise

S.NO	Energy input details	Units	Quantity
A	Energy purchased	MU	36.534
В	Net input energy (at DISCOM Periphery after adjusting the transmission losses and energy traded)	MU	36.534
С	Energy billed	MU	35.611
D	T& D Loss	MU	0.923
Е	% T&D Loss	%	2.53
G	Amount of Energy billed	Rs (Crores)	38.29.
Н	Amount of collection	Rs (Crores)	38.29
Н	Collection efficiency	%	100
Ι	% AT&C Loss	%	2.53

5.2.1 Energy account and performance for the FY 2022-23

Table 26

5.2.2 Quarter wise energy input to the CoPA for the FY 2022-23

Voltage level	Energy input particulars	QTR 1 (MU)	QTR 2 (MU)	QTR 3 (MU)	QTR 4 (MU)	Year 2022-23 (MU)
	Long-Term Conventional	7.386	6.020	6.675	6.973	27.054
	Medium Conventional	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
66kV and above	Short Term Conventional	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Banking	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Long-Term Renewable energy	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000

	Medium and Short-Term RE	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Captive, open access input	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Sale of surplus power	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Quantum of inter-state	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	
	transmission loss					0.000
	Power procured from inter-	7.386	6.020	6.675	6.973	0.000
	state sources					0.000
	boundary	7.386	6.020	6.675	6.973	27.054
	Long-Term Conventional	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Medium Conventional	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Short Term Conventional	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Banking	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Long-Term Renewable energy	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
33kV	Medium and Short-Term RE	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
JUNI	Captive, open access input	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Sale of surplus power	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Quantum of intra-state	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	
	transmission loss	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Power procured from intra-	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Input in DISCOM wires					0.000
	network	7.386	6.020	6.675	6.973	27.054
33 kV	Renewable Energy	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Procurement			0.000		0.000
	Small capacity conventional/	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	
	Procurement	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Captive, open access input	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
11 Kv	Renewable Energy	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	
	Procurement	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Small capacity conventional/					
	biomass/ hydro plants	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Procurement Salas Migratian Insut	2 (50	2.046	0.052	2.105	0.000
LT	Sales Migration input	2.650	2.046	2.253	2.195	9.144
	Procurement	0.071	0.081	0.087	0.097	0.336
	Sales Migration Input	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	Energy Embedded within					
	DISCOM wires network	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
	Total Energy Available/ Input	10.106	8.147	9.016	9.264	36.534

		YEAR	QTR 1	QTR 2	QTR 3	QTR 4	2022-23
4	Voltage level	Energy Sales Particulars	MU	MU	MU	MU	MU
		DISCOM' consumers	1.913	1.728	1.876	1.885	7.402
		Demand from open access, captive	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
i	LT Level	Embedded generation used at LT level	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
		Sale at LT level	1.913	1.728	1.857	1.885	7.402
		Quantum of LT level losses	**	**	**	**	**
		Energy Input at LT level	**	**	**	**	**
		DISCOM' consumers	7.876	6.224	6.945	7.164	28.209
		Demand from open access, captive	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
ii	11 kV Level	Embedded generation at 11 kV level used	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
		Sales at 11 kV level	7.876	6.224	6.945	7.164	28.209
		Quantum of Losses at 11 kV	**	**	**	**	**
		Energy input at 11 kV level	10.035	8.066	8.929	9.168	36.198
		DISCOM' consumers	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	33 kV Level	Demand from open access, captive	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
iii		Embedded generation at 33 kV or below level	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
		Sales at 33 kV level	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
		Quantum of Losses at 33 kV	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
		Energy input at 33kV Level	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
		DISCOM' consumers					0.000
		Demand from open access, captive	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
		Cross border sale of energy	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
	> 22 I-V	Sale to other DISCOMs	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
10	> 33 KV	Banking	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
		Energy input at > 33kV Level	7.386	6.020	6.675	6.973	27.054
		Sales at 66kV and above (EHV)	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000
		Total Energy sales	9.790	7.953	8.820	9.048	35.611
	Tota	al Energy input /requirement	10.106	8.147	9.016	9.264	36.534
		T&D Loss (%)	3.133	2.390	2.16	2.334	2.525

5.2.3. Quarter wise energy sales and loss details for the FY 2022-23

**HT and LT Level losses could not be assessed due to the absence of Feeder meters

and DTR meters



Fig 6



Quarter Vise T&D Loss performance for the year 2022-23



5.2.4 Loss analysis of the Two Distribution areas under the CoPA for the FY 2022-23

Month wise T&D loss performance for the two distribution areas

Month wise T&D loss performance of the Willingdon Island and Vallarpadam area.

	WILL	INGDON ISL	AND		VALLARPAD	AM
	Net Energy		T&D			
	input	ENERGY	LOSS	Net Energy	ENERGY	T&D LOSS
	(MU)	SALE(MU)	(MU)	input (MU)	SALE(MU)	(MU)
May-22	2.63	2.54	0.09	1.04	1.02	0.02
Jun-22	2.67	2.61	0.06	0.89	0.87	0.02
Jul-22	2.15	2.07	0.08	0.72	0.69	0.03
Aug-22	2.03	1.97	0.05	0.70	0.65	0.04
Sep-22	2.00	1.94	0.06	0.65	0.69	-0.04
Oct-22	2.07	1.99	0.08	0.70	0.70	0.00
Nov-22	2.17	2.10	0.06	0.85	0.85	0.00
Dec-22	2.27	2.20	0.07	0.70	0.70	0.00
Jan-23	2.33	2.27	0.06	0.70	0.70	0.00
Feb-23	2.27	2.22	0.06	0.65	0.65	0.00
Mar-23	2.20	2.14	0.06	0.66	0.66	0.00
Apr-23	2.60	2.51	0.09	0.88	0.88	0.01
ANNUAL	27.39	26.56	0.83	9.15	9.05	0.10
TOTAL						
T& D Loss			3.03 %			1.09 %
%						

Table 29





5.2.5. Feeder wise energy distribution in Willingdon Island

(Feeder wise loss could not be assessed due to the absence of functional meters in DTRs.

Loa	nd distributio	n through the F	eeders from the `	Wellingdon su	bstation	for the y	ear 202
	Feeder	Feeder	Status of	Feeder	CT/P	Export	Import
	Name	Metering	Meter	Туре	Т	(MU)	(MU)
		Status	(Functional/N	(Agri/	ratio		
		(Metered/	on-functional)	Industrial/M			
		unmetered/		ixed)			
		AMI/AMR)					
1	MNC	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.30	0
2	NTRO KV	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	2.50	0
3	Q9 1	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	6.69	0
4	Q92	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	4.40	0
5	MH2	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	2.45	0
6	UTL	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	2.59	0
7	Q93	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	2.30	0
8	MH3	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.00	0
9	STN TR	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.08	0
10	PENNA	AMI	Functional	Commercial	200/5	4.80	0
11	11 NTRO A2 AMI		Functional	200/5	0.91	0	
			Total			27.01	

Table No:30

5.3. Subsidy computation and analysis based on the quarterly data

In CoPA there is no subsidy payment from Government.

5.3.1 The category wise consumption and revenue realisation for the FY 2022-23

Period From 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023												
Consumer pro	file		Energy pa	arameters	Comm							
Consumer category	Total% ofNumber ofnumberconnectioofnsconnectio(Nos)ons		Total energy	% of energy consump tion	Billed Amount in Rs. Crore	Collected Amount in Rs. Crore	Collectio n Efficiency	Average billing rate				
Residential	428	34%	0.926641	3%	0.602286	0.602286	100.00%	6.499671				
Agricultural	0	0%	0	0%	0	0	0.00%	0				
Commercial/Industrial-LT	582	46%	3.675433	10%	4.91468	4.91468	100.00%	13.3717				
Commercial/Industrial-HT	29	2%	26.22357	74%	28.58328	28.58328	100.00%	10.89984				
Others	217	17%	4.785379	13%	4.189846	4.189846	100.00%	8.755516				
	1256	100%	35.61103	100%	38.2901	38.2901	100.00%	10.75231				

Table No:31 A

		AT 8. C loce	ion (%) (%)	ncy	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00% 3%	·00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00% 2%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00% 2%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	ameter		Collec	Efficie	4 100)	10(10(9 10(3 10(3 10()	5 100	100	8 100	6 10(4 100)	100	100	9 100	3 10(2 100)	6 100	100	6 100	
	mercial Para	Colloctod	Amount in	Rs. Crore	0.1382806	0	1.2664596	6.9921523	1.0513269	9.4482195	0.1290468	0	1.1561357	6.2006237	0.9701076	8.4559139	0.1382806	0	1.2664596	6.9921523	1.0513269	9.4482195	0.1633520	0	1.2166340	7.4334231	1.0714792	
: 2022	Com	Billod	Amount in	Rs. Crore	0.13828064	0	1.2664596	6.9921523	1.05132699	9.44821953	0.12904683	0	1.15613575	6.2006237	0.97010768	8.45591396	0.13828064	0	1.2664596	6.9921523	1.05132699	9.44821953	0.16335202	0	1.21663406	7.4334231	1.07147926	
2 to 30th Dec	sses		T&D loss	(%)			3%			3%			2%			2%			2%			2%			2%			
lst Oct 202	ГО	T&D loss		(NM)		_	0.316613			0.316613		_	0.194729			0.194729			0.195449			0.195449			0.216217			
Period From (arameters		% of energy	consumption	2%	%0	10%	75%	13%	100%	3%	%0	11%	72%	14%	100%	3%	%0	11%	73%	14%	100%	3%	%0	10%	73%	14%	
	Energy p	lled energy (M	-	Total energy	0.241836	0	0.951981	7.365408	1.23035	9.789575	0.210166	0	0.870673	5.743311	1.128391	7.952541	0.223117	0	0.935392	6.457992	1.20415	8.820651	0.251522	0	0.935796	6.6384526	1.222488	
	Consumer profile		Consumer category	-	Residential	Agricultural	Commercial/Industrial-LT	Commercial/Industrial-HT	Others		Residential	Agricultural	Commercial/Industrial-LT	Commercial/Industrial-HT	Others		Residential	Agricultural	Commercial/Industrial-LT	Commercial/Industrial-HT	Others		Residential	Agricultural	Commercial/Industrial-LT	Commercial/Industrial-HT	Others	
		Name of	Division Division							QTR3						QTR 4												
	Name of circle CoPA CoPA CoPA					b-total			CoPA			b-total			CoPA													
		S No	2				-			Su			2			Su			ŝ			Su			4			

5.3.2 Quarter wise and Category wise revenue realisation for the Year 2022-23

Table No: 31 B

5.3.3 Trend analysis



Fig No: 9

5.3.4 Average billing rate

As per the revenue analysis the average billing rate pe consumer under the CoPA is Rupees 10.75.

6. Energy audit Findings

6.1 Review of capacity of the DISCOMS energy accounting and audit cell.

As per BEE regulations the DISCOM has formed a centralised energy accounting and audit cell. The entire consumers are installed with advanced SMART meters with AMI feature, except few streetlight meters and self-consumption meters. In addition, there is a centralised AMI server for capturing the meter reading from the SMART meters. This server is also connected with the accounting SAP system. But Quarterly energy accounts are prepared by the DISCOM manually, by collecting data from the accounts and field.

While analysing the losses in the two distribution areas, the losses found very low and even negative (in September 22) in Vallarpadam area. (Refer fig 8). The reason for the low losses is to be analysed properly. This may be due to an error in the consumer mappings.

Based on the audit observation, there is a slight mismatch in the revenue collection and actual unit sale due to different criteria being employed by the accounts and the audits. The regular financial accounts data is from April 22 to March 23. Whereas the audit data is from May 22 to April 23.

Actual revenue against the unit sale is to be made in each month. Besides, as per BEE regulation month wise energy account statement is to be prepared for each month.

As per account report, the collection efficiency is 100 % for all category of consumers. Collection efficiency is to be accounted against unit sale, based on the collection within the stipulated time. Presently there are some pending arrears from the Government consumers like Police.

Though SMART meters with prepaid facility are installed by the DISCOM, the implementation of the prepaid facility is not activated. Activation of the prepaid billing as per the time line set by the BEE is to be followed

6.2. Critical Analysis by Energy Auditor

As per the regulations, the compliance of the DISCOM was verified for the status and progress to prerequisites, reporting requirements and other technical aspects and the compliance status are furnished below with detailed responses of the DISCOM Management.

S.NO	Parameters verified as per the Energy audit regulation for the DISCOM 2021	Relevant regulation number	Whether the DISCOM Complied or not	Comments by the DISCOM management
1	Pre-requisites for annual energy audit and periodic energy accounting	Reg No: 5		
a)	The identification and mapping of all of the electrical network assets;	Clause (a)	Not yet completed The mapping of feeders, DTR and	The work is proposed under the RDSS Scheme.

6.2.1 Status and progress in compliance with the prerequisites for energy accounting

			consumers are pending.	
(b)	The identification and mapping of high tension and low-tension	Clause (b)	Not fully completed.	Proposed under the RDSS Scheme.
(c)	The development and implementation of information technology enabled energy accounting and audit system, including associated software.	Clause (c)	Not fully complied.	Proposed under the RDSS Scheme. Presently the quarterly and annual Energy account reports are prepared based on the AMI software and SAP System.
(d)	100% Communicable Feeder Metering integrated with AMI, by 31 st December 2022 along-with replacement of existing non- communicable feeder meters.	The first schedule. Trajectory for meter installation	Not yet complete.	Proposed under the RDSS Scheme
(e)	All Distribution Transformers (other than HVDS DT up to 25kVA and other DTs below 25 kVA) shall be metered with communicable meters. Communicable DT Metering for the following areas / consumers to be completed by December 2023 and in balance areas by December 2025:		Not yet complied.	Proposed under the RDSS Scheme.
(f)	All Electricity Divisions of 500 AMRUT cities, with AT&C Losses > 15 %		Not Applicable.	
(g)	All Industrial and Commercial consumers;		Yes complied.	All HT and LT Consumers are fitted with SMART Meters with AMI features.
(h)	All Government offices at Block level and above;		Yes complied.	
(i)	Other high loss areas i.e. rural areas with losses more than 25% and urban areas with losses more than 15%.		Not applicable	
(j)	Further, existing non- communicable Distribution Transformer meters to be replaced with communicable meters		Not applicable	

	integrated with AMI, within the timelines applicable to the			
(iii)	respective areas Prepaid Smart Consumer Metering to be completed for all directly connected meters and AMR in case of other meters, by December 2023 in the following areas:		Yes complied.	The SMART Meter installed have prepaid facility.
(a)	All Electricity Divisions of 500 AMRUT cities, with AT&C Losses > 15%		Not applicable	
(b)	All Industrial and Commercial consumers;		Yes	
(c)	All Government offices at Block level and above;		Yes complied.	
(d)	Other high loss areas i.e. rural areas with losses more than 25% and urban areas with losses more than 15%.		Not applicable	
(iv)	Targets for the installation of functional meters.	Year 202	2-23	
	Meter type	Target	Achievement	Remarks
(a)	Feeder metering (%)	98.5%	73 % (11/15)	Proposed under the RDSS Scheme.
(b)	DT metering (%)	90%	0%	Do
(c)	Consumer metering (%	93%	100 %	Complied.
(v)	Whether created a centralized energy accounting and audit cell comprising of— (i) a nodal officer, an energy manager and an information technology manager, having professional experience of not less than five years; and (ii) a financial manager having professional experience of not less than five years	Regulation 5(g)	Yes complied.	The DISCOM has a centralised energy accounting and audit cell comprising of a Nodal officer, Energy Manager, I.T Manager and a Financial Manager.

Table 32 A

6.2.2 Status and progress in compliance with the reporting requirements of the regulation (Refer regulation No: 6)

Parameters verified as per the Energy audit regulation	Relevant regulation	Whether the DISCOM	Comments by
for the DISCOM 2021	number	Complied or	the DISCOM
		not	management

,					
	(i)	Every electricity distribution company shall designate a nodal officer, who shall be a full-time employee of the electricity distribution company in the rank of the Chief Engineer or above, for the purpose of reporting of the annual energy audit and periodic energy accounting and communicate the same to the Bureau.	Regulation No: 6(1)	Yes complied.	Shri Ajayakumar R.S, Executive Engineer is the Nodal officer. Cochin Port Authority is a small distribution licensee with hardly 1256 consumers under the port area. Hence the nodal officer is in the rank of an Executive Engineer.
	(ii)	Every electricity distribution company shall ensure that the energy accounting data is generated from a metering system or till such time the metering system is not in place, by an agreed method of assumption as may be prescribed by the State Commission	Regulation No: 6(2)	Yes complied.	The energy accounting data is generated from metering system. Hence there are no assumptions.
	(iii)	Metering of distribution transformers at High Voltage Distribution System up to 25KVA can be done on cluster meter installed by each electricity distribution company	Regulation No: 6(3)	Not applicable.	There is no HVDS in CoPA.
	(iv)	The energy accounting and audit system and software shall be developed to create monthly, quarterly and yearly energy accounting reports.	Regulation No: 6(4)	Not complied to the fullest extent.	The installation of functional meters for the feeders and DTRs are yet to complete. Presently, all the consumer meters and 11 Nos of Feeders are installed with SMART meters. In CoPA, AMI Software is used to fetch data from smart meters installed at consumer premises and integrated with SAP system. Monthly Invoices are generated from SAP by accounts Department.

				Various reports including preparation of energy audit and accounting reports are generated from SAP system with manual intervention.
(v)	Every electricity distribution company shall provide the details of the information technology system in place as specified in clause (f) of regulation 5 that ensures minimal manual intervention in creating the energy accounting reports and manual intervention of any nature, in respect of the period specified therein, shall be clearly indicated in the periodic energy accounting report.	Regulation No: 6(5)	Not yet complied.	In CoPA, AMI Software is used to fetch data from smart meter and same software is integrated with SAP. In the Finance department, SAP is used to generate Monthly invoice for the individual consumers. Presently the energy account and audit reports are prepared manually using the SAP and AMI Software data. The information technology system as per clause (f) of regulation 5 is proposed under the RDSS system

Table 32 B

6.2 3. Management Analysis

The key aspects of the regulations are, the conduct of the annual energy audit in DISCOMs by an external accredited auditor every year and submission of regular quarterly energy account report to the BEE and to the SDA prepared by the Energy Manager of the DISCOM within the time frame. There are clear guidelines in regulation for the preparation of quarterly accounts and the manner of conducting energy audit. The Energy accounting for all energy inflows in the distribution system, including renewable energy generation, open access consumers, and energy consumption by the end consumers, shall be conducted on a periodic basis. This necessitates the availability of energy accounting data at consumer, transformer, feeder and system level. Energy accounting will help the DISCOM to identify areas of heavy loss and pilferage, and thereafter, focused efforts can be made by the DISCOMs to take corrective action.

On scrutiny of the prerequisite conditions, reporting requirements and other technical and commercial aspects, the following observatory remarks are made by the Energy auditor for which reply has been submitted by the Management of the DISCOM.

Regarding the negative T&D loss issue in Vallarppadam area in the month of September 2022, the management has explained that, the reason may be due to the slight mismatch in the energy accounting of the KSEBL and the CoPA. The consumptions are recorded in CoPA, by the SMART meters and will record from 00 hrs on each day. While the KSEBL energy accounting is done by way of manual energy meter reading and hence there is a delay in accounting the same in each month. Moreover, the number of consumers in the Vallarpadam area is very few, which has resulted in low loss figure

Summary of the critical observation made by the Energy auditor and the management response analysis are furnished below:

- 1. While analysing the loss on quarterly or annual basis, there is no negative loss figure in the Vallarpadam area. Hence the explanation submitted by the Management about the error in the Monthly loss figure in Vallarpadam area, due to the mismatch in the energy account is satisfactory.
- 2. The mapping of consumers with DTR and Feeders is the prime requirement for the Energy accounting of Feeders and Distribution Transformers. This is essential for tracking the loss and weak points of the DISCOM. But the mapping of the consumers with DTR and Feeders are yet to completed in CoPA. The Management has reported that the mapping work will be complete by the DISCOM along with the completion of feeder meters proposed under the RDSS scheme. The management has also promised to complete the task by the year 2024-25.
- 3. As per the trajectory set by the regulation, the installations of functional meters for all feeders shall be completed by the DISCOM before 31st December 2022.But it is seen that, CoPA has installed functional meters only in 11 feeders out of the 15 feeders. Moreover, the feeders are arranged in Ring main system consisting of multiple feeders. There is no proper monitoring system for the ring arrangement. This is a major bottle neck for assessing the feeder wise energy accounting. The

Energy auditor has recommended a proper monitoring system for the Ring main arrangement with optimal load distribution in the feeders.

The DISCOM management has replied that the installation of functional meters in all the feeders are the top priority and the same will be completed by the DISCOM before 31st December 2024.Further, arrangements will be made for proper monitoring of the Ring network with optimal load distribution in the 11 kV feeders.

4. Presently no meters are installed in DTR in CoPA. –

The Management of the DISCOM has explained that the DTR meter installations are already proposed under the RDSS scheme and will be completed before 31st December 2024.

5. Installation of SMART prepaid meters for the LT and HT consumers: The CoPA has already completed the work for the consumers. These meters are connected with an AMI software through mobile network using GPRS. This is a

major advantage for CoPA.

- Formation of Centralised energy auditing and accounting cell CoPA has a Centralised Energy auditing and accounting cell consisting of a Nodal officer, Energy Manager, IT Manager and the Financial Manager.
- 7. The CoPA is a small distribution licensee with hardly 1256 consumers in two separate areas without any border sharing. Hence energy accounting is relatively easy. The 74 % of the energy consumption is by the Commercial sectors.
- 8. Subsidy account: There is no subsidy payment by the Government.
- 9. The 11 kV distribution is through UG cables with RMU system. The loading in feeders are also low. Hence the distribution loss will be relatively low in feeders.
- 10. One major observation made by the Energy auditor is that majority of the Distribution transformers are old with higher capacity compared to the load requirement. On, sample verification of DTR load an unbalance is seen in the LT feeding. Hence there is scope for loss reduction in DTR through load balancing. The management explained that CoPA has already proposed the replacement of 20 Transformers with energy efficient transformers and has also ensured that immediate action will be initiated for regular load monitoring and balancing of load in distribution transformers.
- 11. The CoPA is not yet equipped with a software for the energy account and audit without manual intervention.

The Management explained that all the consumers are fitted with SMART Meters with AMI feature. Moreover, all SMART meters are connected with AMI software through GPRS system The AMI software is integrated with the SAP system. Hence system loss assessment is prepared manually based on the data from the SAP system. Further, the creation of software for Energy accounts as stipulated by the regulation is proposed under the RDSS scheme and will be completed by the year 2024-25.

6.3. Revised findings based on the data validation and field verification and corrective action proposed.

As per the BEE regulation, energy flow is to be monitored at all voltage levels. But based on the data validation and field verification, the following observations are made for necessary corrections.

- 1. There is no input meter on the DISCOM side for the 110 kV supply input at the Willingdon Island and the 11 kV supply input at Vallarpadam. The monthly meter readings are recorded in the CoPA register, while taking the meter reding by the KSEBL. Also input energy is accounted from the purchase bill. Hence functional meters are to be installed at the supply input points on the 11 kV side, both at the Willingdon Island and at Vallarpadam. This is essential for energy audit purpose.
- 2. The 11 kV distribution is connected in Ring main system by connecting multiple feeders for ensuring better supply reliability. But there is no proper monitoring system for the Ring feeding arrangement. This makes it difficult for the load assessment in feeders. Hence for assessing the feeder wise load and loss the following measures to be adopted:
 - a. All the ring networks are to be properly defined based on the optimal load condition in the feeders with separate identification number for each ring and subring.
 - b. There shall be proper monitoring for the ring main network operations from the substation or from other control centre. Ring network diagram is to be placed in the substations.
 - c. Border meter has to be installed at the identified feeder changing points in the ring network.
 - d. Consumer, DTR and feeder mapping has to be completed at the earliest.
- 3. Feeder meter installations are to be completed on top priority.
- 4. On scrutiny of the quarterly account report, the following anomalies are noted:a) Feeder energy is found recorded in the Import column. This to be corrected as export energy since the supply is going out from the substation.
 - b) Small quantum of DG energy is found clubbed with the Renewable energy input. This is to be separately added as energy from small capacity conventional plant in the LT level category.
 - c) High-capacity transformers are used for feeding the load and based on sample verification, majority of the Transformers are found underloaded.

d) On sample verification of the peak load measurement on transformers, the Transformer LT supply is found in unbalanced conditions.

.6.4 Inclusion and exclusion.

There is no inclusion or exclusion of energy input or sale particulars.

6.5 Recommendations for Loss reduction

Energy losses occur in the process of supplying electricity to consumers due to technical and commercial reasons. The technical losses are due to energy dissipated in the conductors, transformers and other equipment's used for transmission, sub-transmission and distribution of power. These technical losses are inherent in a system and can be reduced to a certain level.

Pilferage by hooking, bypassing meters, defective meters, errors in meter reading and in estimating un-metered supply of energy are the main sources of the commercial losses. When Commercial losses are added to Technical losses, it gives Transmission & Distribution (T&D) loss.

There is another component of commercial losses, which is attributable to non-recovery of the billed amount and is reflected in collection efficiency. T&D losses together with loss in collection give us Aggregate Technical & Commercial (AT&C) losses.

Based on the field visit and sample load study on the Transformer loading under the CoPA, the following recommendations are offered for the loss reduction:

Low cost and high yield saving proposals

- Unbalanced load condition in transformers. On sample load verification in transformers, it is observed that, there is heavy unbalance load conditions in some transformers. Balancing the load will substantially reduce the loss. Hence
- transformer load is to be monitored on regular interval and load balancing to be undertaken.
 Under loaded transformers: On sample verification it is observed that, high capacity DTR are employed in majority of the locations, when compared to the actual load. Hence, load has to be redistributed among transformers based on the best efficiency conditions. While procuring new energy efficient transformers, transformer capacity is to be selected based on the actual load requirement.
- 3. Tighten all loose joints at the transformer cables and service lines to reduce joint loss.
- 4. Check the transformer earthing and also measure the neutral current on regular intervals.

Medium cost and high yield energy saving measures

- 1. Conductor change: -Replace old conductors with higher cross section new conductors.
- 2. Provide appropriate power factor compensation capacitors on the secondary side of the distribution transformers.
- 3. Convert long and loaded single-phase line to three phase line.
- 4. Convert loaded long three phase line to HT line by installing transformer near the load centre.

Best practises in Distribution management

- 1. Feeder automation with automated switches in Ring main unit. The existing Ring main unit can be converted as SCADA compatible RMU.
- 2. Implementation of Advanced SCADA System in Distribution.
- 3. Implementation of advanced EMS (Energy Management Software for the optimal load management and energy accounting.

7. Conclusion and action Plan

7.1. Summary of the Critical Analysis by Energy Auditor

The key aspect of the regulations is the conduct of the annual energy audit in DISCOMs by an external accredited auditor in every year and submission of regular quarterly energy account report to the BEE and to the SDA prepared by the Energy Manager of the DISCOM within the time frame. There is clear guide lines in the regulation for the preparation of quarterly accounts and the manner of conduct of the energy audit. The Energy accounting for all energy inflows in the distribution system, including renewable energy generation, open access consumers, and energy consumption by the end consumers, shall be conducted on a periodic basis. This necessitates that energy accounting data is made available at a consumer, transformer, feeder and system level. Energy accounting will help the DISCOM to identify areas of high loss and pilferage, and thereafter, focused efforts can be made by the DISCOMs to take corrective action

On scrutiny of the prerequisite conditions, reporting requirements and other technical and commercial aspects, the following observatory remarks are made by the Energy auditor for which reply has been submitted by the Management of the DISCOM. Summary of the critical observation made by the Energy auditor and the management response analysis are furnished below:

 The mapping of consumers with DTR and Feeders is the prime requirement for the Energy accounting of Feeders and Distribution Transformers. This is essential for tracking the loss and weak points of the DISCOM. But the mapping of the consumers with DTR and Feeders are yet to be completed in CoPA.

The Management has reported that the mapping work will be complete by the DISCOM along with the completion of feeder meters proposed under the RDSS scheme. The management has promised to complete the task by the year 2024-25. The Management also ensured that it will check the reason for the variation in the T&D loss in the Vallarpadam area.

 As per the trajectory set by the regulation, the installations of functional meters for all feeders shall be completed by the DISCOM before 31st December 2022.But CoPA installed functional meters only in 11 feeders out of the 15 feeders. Moreover, the feeders are arranged in Ring main system consisting of multiple feeders. There is no proper monitoring system for the ring arrangement. This is a major bottle neck for assessing the feeder wise energy accounting. The Energy auditor has recommended a proper monitoring system for the Ring main arrangement with optimal load distribution in feeders.

The DISCOM management has replied that the installation of functional meters in all the feeders are the top priority and the same will be completed by the DISCOM before 31st December 2023.Further, arrangements will be made for proper monitoring of the Ring network with optimal load distribution in the 11 kV feeders.

3. Presently no meters are installed in DTRs in CoPA. -

The Management of the DISCOM has explained that the DTR meter installations are already proposed under the RDSS scheme and will be completed before 31st March 2024.

4. Installation of SMART prepaid meters for the LT and HT consumers:

The CoPA has already completed the work for the consumers. These meters are connected with an AMI software through mobile network using GPRS ...This is a major advantage for the CoPA.

5. Formation of Centralised energy auditing and accounting cell

CoPA has a Centralised Energy auditing and accounting cell consisting of a Nodal officer, Energy Manager, IT Manager and the Financial Manager.

- 6. The CoPA is a small distribution licensee with hardly 1256 consumers in two separate areas without any border sharing. Hence energy accounting is relatively easy. The 74 % of the energy consumption is by the Commercial sectors.
- Subsidy account: There is no subsidy payment by the Government. The 11 kV distribution is through UG cables with RMU system. Also the loading in the feeders are low. Hence the distribution loss will be relatively low in feeders.
- 8. One major observation made by the Energy auditor is that majority of the Distribution transformers are old with high capacity compared to the load requirement. On sample verification of DTR load an unbalance is seen in the LT feeding Hence there is scope for loss reduction in DTR through load balancing.

The management explained that the CoPA has already proposed the replacement of 20 Transformers with energy efficient transformers and has also

ensured that immediate action will be initiated for regular load monitoring and balancing of load in distribution transformers.

9. The CoPA is not yet equipped with a software for the energy account and audit without manual intervention.

The Management explained that all the consumers are fitted with SMART Meters with AMI feature. Also, all the SMART meters are connected with the AMI software through GPRS system. The AMI software is integrated with the SAP system. Hence system loss assessment is prepared manually based on the data from the SAP system. Further the creation of software for Energy accounts as stipulated by the regulation is proposed under the RDSS scheme and will be completed by the year 2024-25.

7.2 Summary of Key findings

As per the BEE regulation energy flow to be monitored at all voltage levels. But based on the data validation and field verification the following observations are made and to be corrected.

- 1. There is no input meter on the DISCOM side for the 110 kV supply input at the Willingdon Island and at the 11 kV supply input at the Vallarpadam. Presently the input energy is accounted from the purchase bill. And based on the Energy meter reading of the utility. Hence functional meters are to be installed at the supply input points on the 11 kV side both at the Willingdon Island and at Vallarpadam. This is essential for energy audit purpose.
- 2. The 11 kV distribution is connected in Ring main system by connecting multiple feeders for ensuring better supply reliability. But there is no proper monitoring system for the Ring feeding arrangement. This makes it difficult for the load assessment in feeders. Hence for assessing the feeder wise load and loss the following measures to be adopted.
 - a. All the ring networks to be properly defined based on the optimal load condition in the feeders with separate identification number for each ring and subring.
 - b. There shall be proper monitoring for the ring main network operations from the substation or from other control centre. Ring network diagram to be placed in the substations.
 - c. Border meter has to be installed at the identified feeder changing points in the ring network.
 - d. Consumer, DTR and feeder mapping to be completed at the earliest.
 - e. Feeder meter installations to be completed on top priority.
- 3. Up on scrutiny of the quarterly account report the following anomalies are noted
- 4. Feeder energy is found recorded in the Import column. This to be corrected as export energy as the supply is going out from the substation.

- 5. Small quantum of DG energy is found clubbed with the Renewable energy input. But presently there is no provision to add this in the LT system in the Format. This will be taken up with the BEE.
- 6. Higher -capacity transformers are found used for Distribution and based on sample verification; majority of the Transformers are found underloaded.
- 7. Up on sample verification of the peak load measurement on transformers the Transformer LT supply is found in unbalanced conditions

7.3 Recommendations and best practises for Energy accounting and loss reduction

- 1. Energy losses occur in the process of supplying electricity to consumers due to technical and commercial reasons. The technical losses are due to energy dissipated in the conductors, transformers and other equipment's used for transmission, sub-transmission and distribution of power. These technical losses are inherent in a system and can be reduced to a certain level.
- 2. Pilferage by hooking, bypassing meters, defective meters, errors in meter reading and in estimating un-metered supply of energy are the main sources of the commercial losses □ when Commercial losses are added to technical losses, it gives Transmission & Distribution (T&D) loss.
- 3. There is another component of commercial losses, which is attributable to non-recovery of the billed amount, which is reflected in collection efficiency. T&D losses together with loss in collection give us Aggregate Technical & Commercial (AT&C) losses.
- 4. Based on the field visit and sample load study on the Transformer loading under the CoPA the following recommendations are offered for the loss reduction.
- 5. Low cost and high yield saving proposals
- 6. Unbalanced load condition in transformers. Up on sample load verification in transformers, it is observed heavy unbalance load conditions in transformers. Balancing the load will substantially reduce the loss. Hence transformer load to be monitored on regular interval and load balancing to be undertaken urgently.
- 7. Under loaded transformers: Up on sample verification it is observed higher capacity DTR are employed in majority of the locations, when compared to the actual load requirement. Hence load to be redistributed among transformers based on the best efficiency conditions. While procuring new energy efficient transformers, transformer capacity to be selected based on the actual load requirement.
- 8. Tighten all the loose joints at the transformer cables and service lines, this will reduce joint loss.
- 9. Check the transformer earthing and also measure the neutral current on regular interval.
- 10. The load in the two 12.5 MVA Power transformers are found below 30%. Hence switching off one transformer alternatively will reduce the transmission loss.
- 11. Medium cost and high yield energy saving measures
- 12. Conductor changing: Replace old conductors with higher cross section new conductors.
- 13. Provide appropriate power factor compensation capacitors on the secondary side of the distribution transformers.
- 14. Convert long and loaded single-phase line to three phase line.
- 15. Convert long three phase line to HT line by installing transformer near the load centre. Best practises in Distribution management
 - 1. Feeder automation with automated switches in Ring main unit. The existing Ring main unit can be converted as SCADA compatible RMU.
 - 2. Implement Advanced SCADA System in Distribution

3. Implement advanced EMS (Energy Management Software for the optimal load management and energy accounting

7.4. 1. Action Plan for monitoring and reporting

Action	plan for monitering and r	eporting			
S.NO	TASK	Approximate	Benefit	Time frame for	Remarks
		cost		implementation	
	Completion of the Mapping of the		Loss reduction	31-12-2023	
	Consumers with the		and		By implementing
	connecting DTR		complying		these tasks, the loss
			the		can be segregated
2	Since the 11 kV		regulation	31-12-2023	Feeder wise and
2	distribution is through		do	51 12 2025	which will help to
	Ring main system, the				achieve the PAT
	ring networks to be				Target for the
	properly defined with				utility.
	arrangement				
	considering the optimal				
	load through the feeder.				
3	Set up a monitoring		do	31-01-2024	
	system for the Ring				
	operation either at the Substation				
	room or in another				
	place.				
4	Mapping of the DTR			31-12-2023	
	with the Feeders				
5	Completion of the			31-03-2024	
	Feeder meter				
	feeders				
6	Incorporation of the			31-01-2024	
	DTR and Feeder				
	Mapping DATA in the				
	existing AMI software				
	so that DTR wise and				
	loss statement can be				
	generated				
7	Completion of the DTR	1200000		31-12-2024	
	Meter installations				

Table No: 33

7.4 .2. Action Plan for automated Energy accounting

A	ction Plan for automation				
1	Task details	Approximate cost	Benefit /Saving	Payback	Remarks
				period	
1	Distribution SCADA	54200000	Advanced load monitoring	To be worked	
	implementation		and control. Better supplier	out based on	
			reliability parameters and	the existing	
			hence high revenue and	parameters.	
			customer satisfaction.		
2	Implement the advanced	1500000	Complete energy		
	EMS software in the		management solutions and		
	Distribution		revenue management.		
1			1		1

Table No: 34

8. ANNEXURES

8.1 Introduction of the Verification team

The audit is conducted by M/s Centre for Energy, Environment and Productivity (CEEP) an Empanelled accredited auditing firm in DISCOM. The details of the auditing team members are furnished below.

S.NO	Name of the officer	Qualification	Designation
1.	Dr. J. Nagesh Kumar	Ph.D	Accredited Energy auditor Reg No: 0133
2	Shri Sunilkumar V K	B. Tech (Elec)	Sector expert (DISCOM) & Certified Energy Auditor Reg No: EA 3642
3.	Shri Jagadish Chandran	B.E.	Electrical Auditor
4.	Shri K.G. Diwakar	M.E.	Certified Energy Auditor

AUDIT TEAM

Table 35

//

8.2 Minutes of the Meeting with DISCOM

Minutes of the opening meeting conducted in connection with the Mandatory Energy Audit in the Electricity Distribution System of M/s Cochin Port Authority for the FY 2022-23 on 11 th July 2023 in the chamber of the Chief Mechanical Engineer.

Minutes of the Discussion

Date	- 11/7/2023
Time	- 11 am to 1 pm
Venue	 The chamber of Chief Mechanical Engineer, CoPA, W.Island, Coohin-9
Subject	- Energy Auditing for the year 2022-23 in compliance with BEE Regulation
Presided by	- Chief Mechanical Engineer

Participants

Cochin Port Authority

- 1. Shri, V.Thuraipandian, CME, CoPA
- 2. Shri, R.S. Ajayakumar, EE(Ele)D.O
- 3. Shri Ajithkumar.D .EE(Ele)P
- 4. Smt.Humblie Ursale John, EE(Ele)
- 5. Smt.Jayalakshmy.S, AEE(Ele)
- 6. Smt.Mini.V. AEE(Eie)
- 7. Smt.Amina Azeez M.A. AE(Eie)
- 8. Shri Mathew Paul, AE(Elė)
- 9. Shri Johny Alumparambil, AE(Ele)

M/s Centre For Energy Environment and Productivity, Chennai, Accredited Energy Auditor for DISCOMS.

- 1. Shri, Sunilkumar V.K. Sector Expert (DISCOM) & CEA.
- 2. Shri. Jadish Chandran, Electrical Auditor

Ref : 1. Contract No: GEMC-511687788965203 dated 04 ** July 2023

 Centre For Energy Environment and Productivity, Chennal mail dated 07/07/ 2023

Cochin Port Authority has awarded contract for conducting Annual Energy Auditing and Periodic. Energy Accounting, in compliance with the BEE Regulation to Mis Centre For Energy Environment and Productivity, Chennal, Accordingly a meeting has been convened with AEA Representative Sri. Sunikumar V K Sector Expert (DISCOM) on 11/07/2023.

CME welcomed the AEA and all the officers and appraised the necessity of conducting the Annual Energy Audit within the time schedule as stipulated by the BEE i.e on or before 31/07/2023. CME has directed all the Engineers to coordinate with the AEA for the smooth conduct of the Annual Energy Audit and Periodic Accounting for the year 2022-23.

Followed by this Shri Sunikumar V K the Sector Expert (DISCOM & CEA) of M/s CEEP, Chennai has briefed about the BEE DISCOM Audit Regulation 2021 and the necessity for complying with the requirements within the time frame for avoiding the penalty. He has also explained the mode of conduct of the audit as follows :

ANNUAL ENERGY AUDIT REPORT OF COCHIN PORT AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

- . Compliance check for the prerequisite conditions of energy account in CoPA (as per regulation 5).
- Compliance check of the reporting requirement of the annual energy audit and periodic energy accounting in CoPA.(as per regulation 6)
- Verification of the guarterly energy account of the CoPA for the four guarters of the year 2022-23
 prepared by the Energy Manager.
- · Verification of the actual energy purchase and net input energy injected in to the DISCOM periphery
- (Documents required -annual report/purchase bill and Internal energy energy details)
- Verification of the category wise and voltage wise actual energy sale for the year 2022-23
- · Site visit and sample check of the meter readings , meter installation details and calibration status
- · Verification of the Energy conservation measures implemented in CoPA

The chair informed that the installation of the DTR meters, remaining Feeder meters and SCADA system for complying with automated energy accounting as per BEE Regulation has been taken up in the RDSS scheme and will be completed as per the schedule.

Meeting closed at 11 PM.

aladian 11 07/202 Chief Mechanical Engineer

Cochin Port Authority

0	CENTRE FOR ENERGY, ENVIORN	MENT AN	D PRODU	ICTIVITY	Form No: MEADC 001	Rev 0
	Check list for ene	rgy audit	prepared	by the Em AEA	V.	V ka Su
S.NO	Parameter	Unit	Qty	Ref document	Compliance/result	Proposed Target date if not complied
1	Verification for the Progress of meter installation	No		Trajectory for meter installation.First schedule (Regulation (5d)).		
2	Verification of the compliance of the prerequisites for the energy audit and energy accounting			Regulation 5		
3	Verification of the existing pattern of energy distribution across the pheriphery of electricity distribution company			Energy account report from DISCOM,Tariff petition filed by the DISCOM		NA
4	Verification of accounted energy flow submitted by the Electricity distribution company at all voltage levels			do		NA
5	Validation of data through sample data checks			Report submitted by the DISCOM, and sample check at site		NA
6	Voltage wise and consumer wise			Do	8	NA
7	Category wise subsidy notified by the Government			Do		NA
8	Voltage wise and category wise subsidy demand & receipt			Do		NA
9	Verification of the Circle wise and Division wise Data			Do		
10	Verification of the calidration details of the meters Verification of the previous year energy audit and account details			Previous year account and audit report submitted to the BEE ,by the DISCOM		
				Second schedule Regulation no 9(1)		

8.3 Check list prepared by the Empanelled Accredited auditing Firm

Table 36
8.4. Brief approach, Scope and methodology of the audit

I. <u>The objectives of the work</u>

As per notification No: 18/1/BEE/DISCOM/2021 dated 6th October 2021 (Manner and interval for conduct of energy audit (accounting) in Electricity Distribution companies regulations issued by the BEE, MOP and amendment issued thereof on 28th October 2022, every Distribution companies shall conduct an annual energy audit by an external accredited auditor for every financial year and submit the annual energy audit report to the Bureau of Energy Efficiency and respective SDA and also made available on the website of the DISCOM within a period of four months from the expiry of the relevant financial year.

The objectives of the work are to conduct a comprehensive energy audit and submit the report containing the details as stipulated by the regulation with recommendations and action plan with time frame and priority to reduce the loss and best practises in energy accounting and energy conservation techniques so as to improve the efficiency and the financial viability of the DISCOM

II. <u>Approach and methodology of the work</u>

The proposed audit will be conducted in the following three phases.

1. Pre-audit phase

- I. Discussion and review meeting(s) with DISCOMs and Energy Manager(s) to ensure reliable and timely data availability
- II. A review of the Macro level data in order to assess the areas of high losses and data gaps
- III. Planning field visits to verify and collect data
- IV. Planning and phasing of various steps involved in audit exercise including data collection, manpower/team deployment,
- V. Organizing the structure of the audit report in consonance with energy accounting regulations notified by BEE; and the output required for corrective action and decision making
- VI. Undertake a review of the capacity of the centralized energy accounting and audit cell created at the DISCOM in terms of adequate representation from professional backgrounds of IT Manager, Energy Manager and Financial Manager

2.Audit phase

a) Review of present structure of energy flow in DISCOM at different levels - State level, transmission, sub-transmission, DT level, feeder level to end consumer etc.

Capture details of DISCOM infrastructure - no. of circles, divisions, sub-divisions, sections, Substations, total No. of Power Transformers with capacity in MVA, total No. of Capacitor Banks in Substations and capacity in MVAR, feeders, DTs with capacity in MVA, boundary meters, category wise consumers and

b) Voltage level for each consumer category etc. (Refer Regulation 5)

- c) Stakeholder interactions with DISCOM, Energy Manager, SE (Circle level), XEN (Division level) for data accuracy and other issues.
- d) Verify, check and validate current metering status (operational/ faulty/ unmetered) and type (communicable/ static etc.) at various voltage levels (feeders, DTs, consumers) and Metering details (such as Meter Sl. Number, Meter reading date and the Mu34ltiplying Factor) through sample field visits and available records with DISCOM.
- e) Verification of energy flow data within DISCOM at all applicable voltage levels (Refer Regulation 7) of distribution network as specified in the regulations. The service level wise energy flow data is to be computed by the DISCOM on a monthly basis, and it would submit a consolidated Quarter wise report to the Energy Auditor, who would only verify the same
- f) Validation through sample data checks and field visits:
 - a. Validation of feeder data: Based on data available in 11 kV Feeder meter at substation for a sample size of 10% for which documentary evidence will be captured in the audit report.
 - b. Validation of energy flow data and losses: Based on field survey as per the following sample size:
 - I. Min. 10 or 1% (whichever is higher) of DISCOM's input energy metering points between Transmission and 66kV/33kV/11kV distribution feeders by checking functional and communication status of meters etc.
 - II. For all Divisions with AT&C losses greater than 25% or at-least 1/3 of the total Divisions of DISCOM, verify: Total of min. 10 or 1% of metering points (whichever is higher) between 220-132-110- 66 /33 kV outgoing and 22kV-11kV-6.6kV-3kV incoming feeders/ direct end consumer by checking functional and communication status of meters.
 - III. In an Urban High Loss Division, check 5 or 1% of Metering points (whichever is higher) at DTs where communicable meters were already installed under other schemes such as R-APDRP and IPDS.
 - IV. Total of min. of 10 or 1% of metering points (whichever is higher) between 11kV/6.6kV feeders and DTs by checking functional and communication status of meters, foot survey of feeder to check for thefts/ hooking etc.
 - V. Verify metering and connection status of min. of 10 or 2% consumers of the Division (whichever is higher) of the following category of consumers Agriculture (Metered and Un-metered), Govt. category connection (ULB, RLB etc.), and LT Industrial

g) Computation of AT&C losses for each division:

- I. Input energy data: Identification of all input points of transmission system, collection of input energy from recorded system, meter reading including energy received and distributed by DISCOM, recorded meter reading at all DISCOM export points, system loading, source of energy supply including generation from RE, etc.
- II. Billing and collection data: Feeder wise and category wise no. of consumers, Voltage

Level for every consumer category, metered and un-metered, connected load, billed and unbilled energy, details of open access, EHT sale, HT sale, LT sale and transmission losses, etc.

- III. Computation of distribution loss, collection efficiency and AT&C loss at Feeder level, DT Level and Utility level
 - 1.

a.	T&D LOSS = (NET INPUT ENERGY - TOTAL ENERGY BILLED)	
b.	BILLING EFFECIENCY (%)=((TOTAL ENERGY BILLED /NET	
	INPUT ENERGY)	
с.	COLLECTION EFFECIENCY (%)={AMOUNT COLLECTED	
	/AMOUNT BILLED }	
d.	AT&C LOSS (%) = (1-BILLING EFFECIENCY X COLLECTION	
	EFFECIENCY)	

- IV. Identify high-loss Feeder and network segments: Based on energy loss
- V. losses, wastage or inefficient use of electricity etc. for initiating target based corrective action
- VI. Identify overloaded segments/ infrastructure: Based on sample assessment and data analysis, make recommendations on undertaking necessary capacity augmentations in substations, Feeders, Transformers and up to consumer end as observed.
 - h) Computation of subsidy assessed based on energy accounting data:
 - i) Revise the findings accordingly as per the field visits undertaken as mentioned above
 - j) Trend analysis with quarterly audit findings, past data review
 - k) Exception analysis and aberrations if any observed in audit exercise

3. Post Audit and Reporting phase

- a) Detailed Energy Audit Report preparation and submission as per BEE energy accounting regulations (Refer Regulation 9)
- b) Audit report should include energy accounting data captured on a quarterly basis for the FY.
- c) The audit report should point out variances in quarterly and annual data and recommendations for alignment of periodic accounting and annual energy audit report, key data gaps, assumptions and exceptions.
- d) Wherever available and feasible, validate Energy Audit report with the Energy Audit report generated by the DISCOM for smart meters for this, the DISCOM would facilitate data/ report availability from the respective AMISP.

iv. Submit an Action Plan in the Energy Audit Report, which should necessarily capture the following:

- a) Provide recommendations w.r.t energy accounting, loss reduction, subsidy accounting, consumption analysis etc. This should include cost-benefit analysis, payback periods etc.,
- b) accompanied by a detailed implementation plan and a mechanism for regular review and monitoring so that desired objectives are achieved within stipulated timelines.
- c) Develop a comprehensive action plan for monitoring of energy flow at each voltage level (Refer Regulation 8)
- d) Recommendations to also include that energy accounts prepared and submitted to BEE to be used for financial audit reporting.
- e) Auditor to obtain detailed action plan from the DISCOM to establish an IT enabled system to create energy accounting reports without any manual interference. This should include timelines for completion of Smart metering of Feeders and DTs, and generation of automated energy accounting reports through an IT platform/ solution. Detailed action plan to form part of energy audit report for regular review and monitoring.
- f) Auditor should observe and compile various Energy Conservation options implemented by the DISCOM and prepare report containing details of expenditure done by DISCOM along with saving and payback period.
- v. Assessment details and recommendations related to annual energy audit of previous year

8.5 Infrastructure details

Form-De	tails of Input Infrastructure	•			
1	Parameters	Total	Covered during in audit	Verified by Auditor in Sample Check	Remarks (Source of data)
Ι	Number of circles	1	1	1	In CoPA there is no Circle or Division wise formation. However, the entire CoPA is treated as a Circle.
Ii	Number of divisions	0			
Iii	Number of sub-divisions	0			
Iv	Number of feeders	15	15	11	List provided by the DISCOM and AMI Software.
V	Number of DTs	30	30	0	List provided by the DISCOM
Vi	Number of consumers	1256	1256	126	Through SAP

Table 37

8.5.1. Voltage based consumers and metering infrastructure

2	Parameters	66kV and above	33kV	11/22kV	LT
	Number of conventional metered				
a.i.	consumers	0	0	0	88
ii	Number of consumers with 'smart' meters	0	0	36	1132
	Number of consumers with 'smart				
iii	prepaid' meters	0	0	0	0
iv	Number of consumers with 'AMR' meters	0	0	0	0
	Number of consumers with 'non-smart				
v	prepaid' meters	0	0	0	0
vi	Number of unmetered consumers	0	0	0	0
vii	Number of total consumers	0	0	36	1220
	Number of conventionally metered				
b .i.	Distribution Transformers	0	0	0	

ANNUAL ENERGY AUDIT REPORT OF COCHIN PORT AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

	Number of DTs with communicable				
ii	meters	0	0	0	0
iii	Number of unmetered DTs	0	0	30	0
iv	Number of total Transformers	0	0	30	
c .i.	Number of metered feeders	0	0	11	0
	Number of feeders with communicable				
ii	meters	0	0	11	0
iii	Number of unmetered feeders	0	0	4	
iv	Number of total feeders	0	0	15	
d	Line length (ckt km)	0	0	85	105
e.	Length of Aerial Bunched Cables (kM)	0	0	0	0
f.	Length of Underground Cables (kM)	0	0	85	

0

Table 38

8.5.2. Detailed list of Transformers

	LIST OF TRANSFORMERS									
Sl.	Trans	sformer De	etails	W C						
No.	Type & Capacity	Make	Maker's Sl.no.	Yr. of mfr.	Location					
1	11 KV/433 V, 630 KVA	KEL	26643	1992	Mattancherry Halt S/s.					
2	11 KV/433 V, 315 KVA	Crompton parkison Ltd	29826V	1975	Mattancherry Halt Qtrs.					
3	11 KV/433 V, 500 KVA	KEL	58942	2008	SBI RMU (Coal Stacking Area)					
4	11 KV/433 V, 250 KVA	Unipower	2263	2011	A3 Area, IMU Campus					
5	11 KV/433 V, 500 KVA	Megawin	947	2014	Subramaniyam Road					
6	11 KV/433 V, 630 KVA	Intrans	T-2676	2019	New Leasing Area					
7	11 KV/433 V, 500 KVA	KEL	4821	1979	110 KV Substation compound					
8	11 KV/433 V, 630 KVA	Talwane	TPE 740	2009	RNAS					
9	11 KV/433 V, 630 KVA	Intrans	T-2677	2018	RNAS					
10	3.3 KV/433 V, 500 KVA	Intrans	T-1653	2012	Hospital Substation					
11	11 KV/433 V, 630 KVA	Intrans	T-2678	2019	Konkan - 2					
12	11 KV/433 V, 250 KVA	Resi Tech	TR-205	2018	Walkway RMU Premise					
13	11 KV/433 V, 315 KVA	Resi Tech	TR-205	2018	Tropicana RMU Premise					
14	11 KV/433 V, 800 KVA	KEL	5115	1981	N.End SSn					
15	11 KV/433 V, 800 KVA			2001	BTP Substation	Wellingdon				
16	11KV/3.3KV - 630kVA		Sl.no. 1599, Intrans	2012	E/Wharf :Substation premises	Island				
17	11KV/433V - 500 KVA		Sl.no. 46534, KEL	2002	E/Wharf :Substation premises					
18	11`KV/433V - 630 KVA		Sl.no. 36884	1996	Old leasing Area					
19	11`KV/433V - 630 KVA		Sl,no. 48824, KEL	2004	Old leasing Area					
20	11 KV/433 V - 500 KVA		Sl.no. 5895, Indian Transformers Ltd	1978	SAGARIKA Cruise Terminal					
21	11 KV/433 V -1250 KVA		Sl.no.739	2009	Q9 Substation					
22	11 KV/433 V - 630 KVA		Sl.no.16969	1977	Q5 Substation					
23	11 KV/433 V - 800 KVA		Sl.no. 8333, KEL	1986	Q10 Substation CFS					
24	11 KV/433 V - 500 KVA		Sl.no. 52888	2005	CWC					
25	11KV/3.3 KV, 1250 KVA		TR12, Indoor NPH		NPH					
26	11 KV/3.3 KV, 1000 KVA		TR13, Indoor NPH		NPH					
27	11 KV/433 V, 500 KVA				VALLARPADOM SUBSTATION					
28	11 KV/433 V, 250 KVA				Near IOC	Vallarppada				
29	11 KV/433 V, 315 KVA				Near SEZ Bldg. (Gate)	m				
30	11 KV/433 V, 300 KVA				MULT					

Table No: 39

8.6. Electrical Distribution system

Cochin Port Authority (CoPA) is a Body Corporate under the Major Port Authorities Act, 2021 (formerly Cochin Port Trust).

CoPA is also a Deemed Electricity Distribution Licensee as per Electricity Act 2003 and a notified DC (**DC No: DIS0048KL**) under the PAT Cycle VII vide notification No: S.O.4552(E) dated 26th September 2022 by the Ministry of Power, GOI.

CoPA is purchasing electricity from M/s Kerala State Electricity Board Limited, a major distribution licensee and distributes to the consumers in Port area, under its jurisdictional power in Willingdon Island, Vallarpadam & Puthuvypin area. CoPA is availing 6.5MVA power at 110 KV system from KSEBL in Willingdon Island and 3 MVA power at 11 kV Voltage at Vallarpadam and distributing electricity to the consumers within the premises of the Port

Presently, CoPA has a 110kV/11kV Substation with 2Nos 10/12.5MVA power transformers and associated switchgears and control gears at Wellington Island and 11 kV receiving Station at Vallarpadam .11kV power is distributed to the consumers through 11kV UG Cables / dedicated 11 kV UG Cables and linked through Ring Main system for redundancy in supply /providing 24x7 days supply.LT feeding is by means of LT OH/ UG cable lines. At present there are 1256 consumers of which 36 are HT Consumers and 1220 are LT consumers. Consumer metering is 100% SMART meters for all category of consumers. However selfconsumption and street light supply are metered through SMART meters/Electronic meters. Action has already been taken to purchase SMART meters to replacing the electronic meters with SMART meters. SMART Meters are with AMI features with prepaid facility. All the SMART Meters are connected to a centralised AMI software system through mobile network using GPRS. The billing and accounting are done using SAP System.

There are eleven 11 KV feeders emanating from 110/11 KV substation at Willingdon Island and four 11 kV feeders at Vallarpadam & Puthuvypin area. There are 30 numbers of 11kV/415Volt and 11 kV/3.3 kV distribution transformers .CoPA has commissioned 100kWp and 150kWp grid connected solar plant . CoPA has also permitted Net metering facility for solar plants of 4 LT and HT Prosumers. Import/Export of energy from the solar plants are accounted through SMART meter. The energy inputs from the solar plants are also covered in the Energy audit.

Loa	Load distribution through the Feeders from the Wellingdon substation for the year 20									
	Feeder	Feeder	Status of	Feeder	CT/P	Export	Impoi			
	Name	Metering	Meter	Туре	Т	(MU)	(MU)			
		Status	(Functional/N	(Agri/	ratio					
		(Metered/	on-functional)	Industrial/M						
		unmetered/		ixed)						
		AMI/AMR)								
1	MNC	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.30	0			
2	NTRO KV	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	2.50	0			
3	Q9 1	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	6.69	0			
4	Q92	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	4.40	0			
5	MH2	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	2.45	0			
6	UTL	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	2.59	0			
7	Q93	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	2.30	0			
8	MH3	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.00	0			
9	STN TR	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.08	0			
10	PENNA	AMI	Functional	Commercial	200/5	4.80	0			
11	NTRO A2	AMI	Functional	Mixed	200/5	0.91	0			
			Total			27.01				

8.6.1 .Feeder wise load distribution under the Willingdon Distribution System

Table 40

On analysing the feeder loads, major loads are found in 3 feeders namely, Q91,Q92 and PENNA. The load in the rest of the feeders are found very low. Hence there is scope for energy saving through optimal load sharing of feeders

8.6.2 Energy	performanc	e of the	previous	years
--------------	------------	----------	----------	-------

S.NO	Energy input details	Units	2020-21	2021-22
Α	Energy purchased	MU	35.581	36.719
В	Net input energy (at DISCOM Periphery after adjusting the transmission losses and energy traded)	MU	35.581	36.719
С	Energy billed	MU	34.219	35.405
D	T& D Loss	MU	1.362	1.313
Е	% T&D Loss	%	3.82	3.577

	WILL	INGDON ISLA	AND	VALLARPADAM			
	Net Energy input (MU)	ENERGY SALE(MU)	T&D LOSS (MU)	Net Energy input (MU)	ENERGY SALE(MU)	T&D LOSS (MU)	
May-22	2.63	2.54	0.09	1.04	1.02	0.02	
Jun-22	2.67	2.61	0.06	0.89	0.87	0.02	
Jul-22	2.15	2.07	0.08	0.72	0.69	0.03	
Aug-22	2.03	1.97	0.05	0.70	0.65	0.04	
Sep-22	2.00	1.94	0.06	0.65	0.69	-0.04	
Oct-22	2.07	1.99	0.08	0.70	0.70	0.00	
Nov-22	2.17	2.10	0.06	0.85	0.85	0.00	
Dec-22	2.27	2.20	0.07	0.70	0.70	0.00	
Jan-23	2.33	2.27	0.06	0.70	0.70	0.00	
Feb-23	2.27	2.22	0.06	0.65	0.65	0.00	
Mar-23	2.20	2.14	0.06	0.66	0.66	0.00	
Apr-23	2.60	2.51	0.09	0.88	0.88	0.01	
ANNUAL TOTAL	27.39	26.56	0.83	9.15	9.05	0.10	
T& D Loss %			3.03 %			1.09 %	

8.6.3 Analysis of performance in the two Distribution areas under the CoPA

Table 42

Month wise and area wise T&D Loss curve for the year 2022-23



Fig 10

8.7 POWER PURCHASE DETAILS

CoPA imports Power from KSEBL through two locations as listed below.

8.7.1 Power purchase details of the Willingdon Island

	M	D Char	'ges	E	nergy cha	rges	Total charges
MONTH	Maxim um demand	Rate /KV A	MD Charges	Consumpt ion	Unit rate	Energy charges	Total charges
May-22	6588	340	2239920	2604600	6.10	15888060	18152440
Jun-22	6578	340	2236520	2650350	6.10	16167135	18416915
Jul-22	4875	380	1852500	2130600	6.25	13316250	14684673
Aug-22	4875	380	1852500	2002950	6.25	12518437.5	14057977
Sep-22	4875	380	1852500	1973850	6.25	12335312.5	13880649
Oct-22	4875	380	1852500	2043300	6.25	12770625	14303859
Nov-22	4958	380	1884040	2134200	6.25	13338750	14890412
Dec-22	5040	380	1915200	2239350	6.25	13995937.5	15581412
Jan-23	4982	380	1893160	2301900	6.25	14386875	15920363
Feb-23	5772	380	219336	2242200	6.25	14013750	15856766
Mar-23	6024	380	2289120	2165250	6.25	13532812.5	15483612
Apr-23	6376	380	2422880	2565150	6.25	16032187.5	18054277
Total				27053700			

Table 43

8.7.2. Power Purchase details of Vallarpadam .

Consume							
Contract							
	MD Cha	rges		Energy cha	arges		
MONT H	Maxim um demand	Rate KVA	MD Charges	Consump tion	Unit rate	Energy charges	Total charges
May-22	2250	340	765000	1141850	6.10	6965285.0	7730285
Jun-22	2250	340	765000	816000	6.10	4977600.0	5970503
Jul-22	2250	380	855000	691700	6.25	4323125.0	7809011
Aug-22	2250	380	855000	695200	6.25	43451562.5	5264775
Sep-22	2250	380	855000	647640	6.25	4047750.0	4939848
Oct-22	2250	380	855000	703480	6.25	4396750.0	5163815
Nov-22	2250	380	855000	851320	6.25	5320750.0	6182250
Dec-22	2250	380	855000	698840	6.25	4367750.0	5429009
Jan-23	2250	380	855000	703120	6.25	4394500.0	5323994
Feb-23	2250	380	855000	648400	6.25	4052500.0	4991646
Mar-23	2250	380	855000	664000	6.25	4150000	5084665
Apr-23	2250	380	855000	882760	6.25	5517250	6432106
Total				9144310			

Table 44

8.8 . SINGLE LINE DIAGRAM OF THE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM



1. SLD OF THE WILLINGDON ISLAND

Fig 11

SINGLE LINE DIAGRAM OF THE -VALLAPADAM AREA



Fig 12

Period From 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023									
Consumer pro		Energy pa	rameters	Commercial Parameter					
Consumer category	Total Number of connectio ns (Nos)	% of number of connecti ons	Total energy	% of energy consump tion	Billed Collected Amount Amount in Rs. in Rs. Crore Crore		Average billing rate		
Residential	428	34%	0.926641	3%	0.602286	0.602286	100.00%	6.499671	
Agricultural	0	0%	0	0%	0	0	0.00%	0	
Commercial/Industrial-LT	582	46%	3.675433	10%	4.91468	4.91468	100.00%	13.3717	
Commercial/Industrial-HT	29	2%	26.22357	74%	28.58328	28.58328	100.00%	10.89984	
Others	217	17%	4.785379	13%	4.189846	4.189846	100.00%	8.755516	
	1256	100%	35.61103	100%	38.2901	38.2901	100.00%	10.75231	

8.9 Category vise consumers and average billing rate

Table 45

8.10 Category of service details (with consumer & voltage wise)

	Parameters	66kV and above	33kV	11/22kV	LT
1	Number of conventional metered	0	0	0	88
		0		0	00
2.	Number of consumers with 'smart' meters	0	0	36	1132
3.	Number of consumers with 'smart prepaid' meters	0	0	0	0
4.	Number of consumers with 'AMR' meters	0	0	0	0
5.	Number of consumers with 'non-smart prepaid' meters	0	0	0	0
6.	Number of unmetered consumers	0	0	0	0
7.	Number of total consumers	0	0	36	1220

S.NO	List of Parameters verified	Reference documents /Criteria
1.	Broad system of the DISCOM	1. Single line diagram of the Distribution
		system
		2. Site visit at incoming substations
		3. Overall visit of the Distribution area
2.	DISCOM input energy for the	1. Energy account reports prepared by the
	FY 2022-23	Energy Manager of the DISCOM
		2. Power purchase bills from KSEBL for the
		year 2022-23
		3. Verification of the Solar energy input &
		DG input from monthly report
3.	DISCOM Category wise Sale of	1. SAP Report
	Energy	2. AMI software report
		3. Quarterly account report prepared by the
		Energy Manager of the DISCOM
4.	T&D Loss	1. Through calculation
		2. Energy account report prepared by the
		Energy Manager of the DISCOM.
5.	Subsidy account	1. Tariff petition filed by the DISCOM
		No subsidy Payment from the
		Government to the CoPA.
6.	Energy conservation measures	1. Previous Energy audit report for the
	implemented by the DISCOM	Year 2021-22
	and under implementations	2. Report submitted by the DISCOM
7.	Compliance of the reporting	1. Previous accounts report and audit reports
	requirement	submitted by the DISCOM
		2. Previous Energy audit report
		3. Website of the DISCOM

8.11 List of documents verified with each Parameters

Table 47

8.12 Brief Description of the Unit

Since the CoPA is a small Licensee with hardly 1256 consumers under the Port area there is no Division, Sub Division or Section wise formation.

8.13 List of Parameters arrived through calculation

There are no parameters arrived through calculation.

8.14 ENERGY AUDIT FORMATS

General information

	Gen	ieral Inform	nation					
1	Name of the DISCOM		Cochin	n Port Authority				
2	i) Year of Establishment			1936				
	ii) Government/Public/Private			Public				
3	DISCOM's Contact details & Address							
i	City/Town/Village			Cochin				
ii	District		I	Ernakulam				
iii	State	Keral	a	Pin	682009			
iv	Telephone	0484-266	8200	Fax	0484-2666512			
4	Registered Office							
i	Company's Chief Executive Name		Dr B	EENA M., IAS				
ii	Designation			Chairman				
iii	Address		Ccochin Por	rt Authority, W.Island				
iv	City/Town/Village	Cochi	n <mark>l</mark>	P.O.	W.Island			
v	District		ł	Ernakulam				
vi	State	Keral	a	Pin	682009			
vii	Telephone	0484-266	8566	Fax	0484-2668163			
5	Nodal Officer Details*							
i	Nodal Officer Name (Designated at DISCOM's)		AJAY	(AKUMAR R.S				
ii	Designation		Executi	ve Engineer(Ele)				
iii	Address		Cochin Por	t Authority, W.Island	10			
iv	City/Town/Village	Cochi	n	P.O.	W. Island			
v	District		I	Ernakulam				
vi	State	Keral	a	Pin	682009			
vii	Telephone	0484-258235	0/2351	Fax	0484-2666639			
6	Energy Manager Details*	-						
i	Name		Jay	valakshmy.S	11-			
ii	Designation	Asst. Exe. Eng	ineer(Ele)	Whether EA or EM	EM			
iii	EA/EM Registration No.			Nil				
iv	Telephone	0484-2382	2360	Fax	0484-2666639			
v	Mobile	9496450704	E-mail ID	D jayalakshmi@cochinport.gov.in				
7	Period of Information							
	Year of (FY) information including Date and Month (Start & End)	e 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023						

Performance summary of the DISCOM

	Performance Summary of Electricity Dis	tribution Companies				
1	Period of Information Year of (FY) information including Date and Month (Start & End)	1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023				
2	Technical Details					
(a)	Energy Input Details					
(i)	Input Energy Purchase (From Generation Source)	Million kwh	36.53			
(ii)	Net input energy (at DISCOM Periphery after adjusting the transmission losses and energy traded)	Million kwh	36.53			
(iii)	Total Energy billed (is the Net energy billed, adjusted for energy traded))	Million kwh	35.61			
(b)	Transmission and Distribution (TRD) loss Datails	Million kwh	0.92			
(0)	Transmission and Distribution (T&D) loss Details	%	2.53			
	Collection Efficiency	%	100%			
(c)	Aggregate Technical & Commercial Loss	%	2.53%			

I/We undertake that the information supplied in this Document and Pro-forma is accurate to the best of my knowledge and if any of the information supplied is found to be incorrect and such information result into loss to the Central Government or State Government or any of the authority under them or any other person affected, I/we undertake to indemnify such loss.

Authorised Signatory and Seal

Name of At Ajayakumar R.S Name of th Cochin Port Authority Full Addre: W.Island , Cochin -682009, Kerala Signature:-Name of Energy Manager*: Registration Number:

J. Nagesh Kumar, Accredited Energy Auditor

J. m

Centre for Energy, Environment and Productivity Plot No. 1039, 28th Street, H-Block, Ponni Colony, Anna Nagar, Chenna: - 600 040. PH: 044 2516 3483, 9444882553

Seal

Form for Infrastructural details

	A.	Form-Details of Input Infr	astructure		
1	Farameters	Total	Covered during in audit	Verified by Auditor in Sample Check	Remarks (Source of data)
1	Number of circles	1			Through SAP
ii	Number of divisions				
111	Number of sub-divisions	1			
	Number of feeders	15	15		Through AMI meter sof
. V.	Number of DTs	30	30		No meter is installed
vi	Number of consumers	1256	1256	126	Through SAP
Z	Parameters	66kV and above	33kV	11/22KV	1T
a. i.	Number of conventional metered consumers		0	0	163
1	Number of consumers with 'smart' meters	0	0	36	1057
1	Number of consumers with 'smart prepaid' meters	0	0	0	0
١v.	Number of consumers with 'AMR' meters	0	0	0	0
v	Number of consumers with 'non smart prepaid' meters	0	0	0	0
vi	Number of unmetered consumers	0	0	0	0
	Number of total consumant		0	30	1110
bi	Number of conventionally metered Distribution	0	0	.30	1220
1.22	naibionners		2		
	Number of DTs with communicable meters	0	0	0	0
п	Number of unmetered DTs	0	0	33	0
N.	Number of total Transformers	10	0	33	
CJ.	Number of metered feeders	0	0		0
	Number of feeders with communicable meters	0	0	11	0
- 11	Number of universed teaders	0	u c	14 1 c	-
	line length (at leng)	0	105	15	10
	Length of Aerial Burchard Cables		105		
	Length of Underground Cables		85		
-	congenies enviragements	- X		¥	Remarks (Source of
3	Voltage level	Particulars	MU	Reference	data
		Long-Term Conventional	27.054	Includes input energy for franchisees	From M/s KSEBL
		Medium Conventional	0		
		Short Term Conventional	0		
		Banking.	ŵ		
		Long-Term Renewable energy	0		
	11212 W1101 M101	Medium and Short-Term RE	0	Includes power from bilateral/ PX/ DEEP	
8	66kV and above	Captive, open access input	0	Any power wheeled for any purchase other than sale to DISCOM. Does not include input for franchisee.	
		Sale of surplus power	0.00%	A contraction of the second	
		Quantum of inter-state transmission loss	0	As confirmed by SLDC, RLDC etc.	
		Power procured from inter-state sources	0.0000	Based on data from Form 5	
		Power at state transmission boundary	27:0537		
-		Long-Term Conventional	0		
		Medium Conventional	0		1
		Short Term Conventional	0		
		Banking	0		
ांग	33KV	Long Term Renewable energy	0		
		Medium and Short-Term RE	0		
		Captive, open access input	0		
		Sale of surplus power	0.00%	-	-
		Quantum of intra-state transmission loss	0		-
14		Power procured from intra-state sources	0		
	Sec. 1	input in DISCOM wires network	0.00000		-
N	33 KV	Renewable Energy Procurement	0		-
		ismail capacity conventional/ biomass/ hydro plants. Procurement	0		
	14 March 199	Captive, open access input	0.00000		-
V	11.10	menewable Energy Procurement	0	-	-
		primaii capacity conventionaly biomass/ hydro plants. Procurement	a		
	12	Sales Migration Input	9.1443		
VI	17	Renewable Energy Procurement	0.336024		
100		Sales Migration Input Energy Embedded within DISCOM wires network	0		
VII.		Contraction and Contraction Contraction (Contraction) (0		
¥Hi		Total Energy Available/ Input	36.5340340		

ANNUAL ENERGY AUDIT REPORT OF COCHIN PORT AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

80	Tallage Intel	Brauer Seine Farlingiers	Mag	Searces	_
		OSCOV cetagram	7.607	Include takis to conserve in its hear these areas.	
				www.tend.com.even	
		Demand from open ecosis, captive	1	Non 0.900 Vit Inferr	
	125 SED	Furtherniklenti generati tata sostel giti (Thesari	0.0	Demand from metadolog press alone of (7 hold	
11.	1.1 Level	Sale at T level	7.402		
(9888));		Qualitation of 17 level losses	**	Loss cannot be assessed due to atsence of meters	
		Saverge input at UT level		Inquit to LY System cannot be uninesed due to absense of OTR Vietnes	
		330.0V menewer	18.139	include-cale to carvament in Buildiese areas, animetered consumers	
		Terrand hars open access, suplar-	U	New DriftTDU's sales	
	13 W Istal	acheitheigesecition at 1147 level und	-0	Invalid Van webstied geeration at 100 invel	
	and the second	A 4 4 10 10 1 - 0	10.700		
		Contraction of Contraction of Contraction	10.000	I she always had an include a first the black had a first state	
		CAREFORN OF LIGHTER BY 10 BY	-+e	The cannot be seemed due to strenge 47 models	
		Anity py report at 12 My level	36.198	Provide a second and standards and the	
		DISCOM [®] communers	0	include-takes to consumers in Constinue areas.	
		Street and Black these screets for white	10	And a second sec	
	2.00 A 490 CM	Participal from open access, capture		This is NOT 201 and 24 demand with the model.	
e bass invet	Addition () and (Provided generation at 33 by or become ver	0	minute a process and the period here we emergy an increased at some vertisest level	_
		Dates at 33 Kill level			
		Genetices of Literate m33 4V	10		
		Party paged at 00/0 lawed			
		DISCOV TRANSPORT		include-taken to cardianter's in framilinew anney,	
		Annual friencement scores, condition		Non-Star Too Starting	
		Contraction with advantage		and other the states	
۰	= 3564	Cost corper tale of evening			
		Cleve to other DOCOMB			-
		Ration	.0		
		Samille (data at > 200 / 1404)			
_	1	States of MAX's and alarma (BHV)	0		
		Talai Bringy Requirement	08.83003107		
_		Satai Brange Jalas	88.8150180		
_		Image from story Laws	*7		
	DISCON	traut	Bala		100.3
	and the second second	A STATE OF A	A PROPERTY AND INCOME.	47 WS0.0	
1	11	K.4217948	1.8317/5	1.614008 +	2
	11/07	X.1991	28.209253	0.006000 *	
	23.80	0	0		
	- 88 by	21 25d	£ .		
-	Epon Same, Captro	ingel Se Mar	Bala In Mart	Less 3+ MUT	
1	H	AL	R. Contract		
	11:02	0	6	4	
-	11 40	6	1		
-	a new second		10 C		
-					

""Due in the observe of funder matters and OTR meters it is analytic trackable the Languagewise tracket fill by Ure- and UT Use.

Less SaliesTer Ter DECOM						
TBITING	10.84					
9 loes	0.92					
T8/0 4min (14)	2.525435235					
Thinns (19)	L'EDALATINA					

								Deta	sils of Div	vision Wise	Losses (5	ee note b	elow**										
										Division	Wite Losses		and the second	The second									_
										1000	Ferlad Fram	lat April 2022	to 21th M	arch 2023				pi - 112				120/10	-
	Same of		Name of		1	1	Consumer profile	-		Constant	Terrel		120121000		Energy para	natara MUII	Ē.	Las	1	Can	mercial Para	mater	
S.No	dirdia	Circle code	Division	-	No of connection	No of connection	Total Number	N of number	Land	Load	Connected	Nof	Insit		Unmetered/a	1	S of energy	TED loss	T&D loss	Gilled	Collected	Collection	AT& Clean
			1.000	Consumer category	(Next	Un-matered (Not)	of connections (Not)	of connections	metered	Un-metered	Load	connected loted	anargy	Netered	meanment	Total energy	consumption	(MU)	191	Amount In Rs. Crore	Amount In Re. Conve	Sticlency	199
	_		-	1000 V		1.000	1000		(MW)	(MW)	(NW)		MUI		energy	10000000	CONTRACTOR	1.1.2.2.2.	110048	- Martine			_
			Wellington	Asio(hci	428	- 1	-128	54%	0	0	0	10%	-	0.920641	0	1.928841	- 1%			0.00228615	0.60278615	100.00%	÷.
1		1	tracet-	Commexclal/leidastrial.ET	562	0	542	4619	- 0	.0	U.	10%	36.53403	3.675433	0	3.675433	10%	0.9230064	15	4.91468	4,91488	100.00%	
			T	Commercial/Indettrial-HT	29		79	18	. d	0	ħ.	0%	1964040	36.22357	0	26.2235726	735	1	1.000	28.5832831	28.5832871	100.00%	ŝ.
			10119	Others	217		- 217	178	0	0	U	0%		4,785379	0	4 785329	. 13%			4.38984626	4 18984626	100.009	1 10
	360-0	1		Bosterile	1255	-	1256	100%	a	0	0	100%	36.53403	35,61103	a .	25.6110256	300%	0.9230084	25	38.2900855	22.2900955	100.00%	25
			1	Agricultural	÷	4	0	CPs.	0	0	p	10%		0	0	0	04		1222	0	1	0.00%	8
1			3	Commercial/Redestrial ET	- ÷		-0	101	. 0.	.0	ų.	.0%	Ð	6	0	0	2/16	đ	2%	. 0	- 4	0.06%	
			1	Commercial/Indestriali HT	- <u>P</u>	0	0	101	: 0.	.0	U.	.0%		0	0	.0	(%		1000	0	. 4	0.00%	6
	Sub-D	ta:		CORS			0	100	0	0	0	1005			0		1005		24	-	-	0.00%	1005
	-		3	Restorntal	0	0	0	0%	0	0	0	0%	-	0	a	D	255		1000	0	0	0.00%	
			3	Agricultural	0	0	0	0%	0	0	0	175	1.00	0	0	0	2%		Attention of the second	D	0	0.00%	
3			3	Commercial/Industrial-LT	0	0	0	0%	0	0	0	(15	1	0	0	0	0%	U	05	0	. 0	0.00%	1
				Commercial/Industrial HT	0	0	0	(76	0.	0	0	0%		0	0	0	196			0	0	0.00%	
	Sub-b	atal .	-	outres.	0		0	100%		0	0	100%	0		0		2005	0	0%	0		0.00%	100%
				Residential	0	0	0	0%	0	0	D	15		0	0	D	2%			D	0	0.00%	
			1	Agricultural	0	9	0	0%	0	0	0	D%		0	0	Ð	0%			. 0	0	0.00%	8
4				Cammercial/Industrial-IT	- 0	0	0	0/14	0	0	ů.	0%		0	0	0	.0%	a.	05	0	.0	0.00%	6
			9	Contrinercial/Indiastrial.HT			0	01	0	0	0	101		0	0		0%			0	0	0.00%	E.
	Sub-b	ater .	_	Cones			0	200%		0	0	100%	0		0		100%	0	0%	0		0.00%	300%
				Residential	0	0	0	0%	0	0	0	UN.	-	0	0	D	0%			0	0	0.00%	
			3	Agricultural	0	0	0	0%	0	0	0	UN.		0	α	D	0%			0	0	0.00%	
1			3	Comneccia/Indattria=(T	0	0	0	(75	.0	.0	ů.	05	D	0	0	0	206	0	05	0	.0	0.00%	1
			1	Commercial/Industrial HT	0.		0	10%	0.	0	0	106	-	0	0	0	05			0		0.000	1
-	Sub-ti	te	-	Colors .			0	100%	0	0	0	100N	0		0	0	2005	0	05	0		0.005	100%
		1		Reconital	0	8	0	0%	0	0	0	10%	-	0	0	0	05	1	-	. 0	0	0.00%	
			1	Agricultural	- 0	- ð:	0	0%	0	0	-D	0%		¢.	ů.	0	0%		7.4.5	- 0	0	n.00%	2
-4			3	Commercial/Industrial ET	· 0.		0	104	- 81	0	0.	.0%	D	0.1	Ű.	Ð	(06.	a	0%	U	.0	0.00%	1
			2	Commorcial/Indoabrail-MT	0	0	0	0%	0	0	U	101	-	0	0	0	106			0	0	0.00%	-
	Sub-ti	otal		Cones			0	3005		0	0	100%			0		100%	0	25	0		0.005	100%
		1	7	Residential	0	0	0	0%	0	0	0	0%		0	0	0	0%	1000	1.1.1.1	D	0	0.00%	
			1	Agricultural	0	. 0	0	0%	0	0	0	0%	164	0	0	0	206	101	-		. 0	0.00%	
7			1	Connecta/Industrial LT	0	ō	0	15	0	0	0	0%		0	0	0	05		2%	0	0	0.00%	
			1	Commercial/Industrial HT	0	0	0	0%	0	0	0	05		0	0	0	0%			0		0.00%	
	Sub-b	ital		And and a			0	100%		0	0	100%	0		0	0	100%	0	056	0		0.00%	100%
		-		Residential	0	0	0	.0%	0	0	D	D%		0	0	Ð	0%			0	0	0.00%	
			3	Agénétacel	0	0	0	0%	0	0	0	006		- 0	0	0	0%			0		0.00%	2
1				Convincial/Industrial (T	0	0	0	01		0	0	004	0	0	0		0%	0	05	0	0	0.00%	i i
			1	Communcal/Industrial-HT	0	0	0	0%	0	0	0	10%	1	0	0		105			0	0	0.00%	
	Sub-b	risi		adding a			0	1005		0	0	100%	0		0		100%	0	0%	0		0.00%	100%
		3	2	Residential	0	0	0	(75)	0	0	ŭ	03		0	0	0	206	0 0		D	0	0.00%	
UI			3	Agsioinnaí	0.	- 0	0	th	0	0	Ū.	105		0	0	0	0%		100	0	0	0.00%	
1			3	Communical/Industriali L1	0.	0	0	0%	0	0	0	0%	- 0	0	ų.	0	0%	.0.	05	0	.0	0.00%	
			1	Others	0	0	0	105	0	0	0	105		0	0	-0	05			0	0	0.00%	8
	Sub-ti	otal			0		0	100%	0	0	0	100%	0		0	0	100%	0	0%	0		0.00%	100%
			9	Residential	0	0	0	0%	0	0	0	0%		0	0	0	- 05	0 0		0	.0	0.000	
			1	Agricultural	· 80	- #:	0	10%	- #L	0	0	.0%	72	0.0	0	0	(06	1 10	0155	1.1	.0	0.00%	
-10			3	Communicat/Industrial-LT	0	0	U	10%		0	U	UNI	0	0	0		016	n	On	0	0	0.00%	
			3	Cethers	0		0	10%	0	0	0	10		0	0	0	106			0		0.00%	6
	Sub-to	otal		2000			0	100%	0	0	8	100%	0		٥	0	100%	a	0%	D		0.00%	1005
		1		Residential	0	0	0	0%	0	0	0	0%		0	0	0	.0%		10.00	Ð	0	0.00%	
			1	Agricultural		õ	0	(1%	Ģ	0	0	104	18	- Ø	0	0	06	1 20	100	0	0	0.00%	
п			0.1	Commercial/Indestrial LT		0	0	0%	0	0	0	014	. 0	0	0	0	0%	.0.	209.	0	0	0.00%	
				Others	-	-	0	0%	0	0	0	05		-	0	P	256			0		0.00%	8
	Sub-b	otal					0	100%		0	0	100%	0	0	0	0	100%	0	0%	0		0.00%	100%
			8	Residential		ψ.	0	0%	0	0	0	00		. 0	0		106			0	0	0.00%	1
13		6	3	Agricultural	0	0	ų.	0%	0	U.	0	101		. 0	0 <	. 0	106	8 0		0	0	0.00%	ā.
11	1		1	Others	0	D	U	AON/O	u I	0	U	#DN/0	3	.0	0	u	#DIV/01	3		0	a	0.00%	
								and the second se									and a second		and the second se				and the second se

Division wise Losses for the FY 2022-23

			Others	0	0	u	AON/Or	đ	0	U	#DN/O		0	.0	u -	#DIV/01	1		0	u u	0.00%	
8 Y.	Sub-tot	tal		0	0	0	100%	0	0	0	100%	Ú.	0	0	ů.	100N	0	0%	0	ú	0.00%	100%
			Residential	478	8	428	34%	π	0	υ	0%		0.5266-01	0	0.926641	31		3	0.60229613	0.60228613	100.00%	
		100	Agricultural	0	0	Π	206	1	0	0	014	and the	D	0	a .	0%	Second Second		0	0	0.00%	
76	To	oral hato	Commercial/industrial-LT	582	0	582	46%	0	0	0	DNI .	36.53403	3.675433	0	3.675433	10%	0.9230084	3%	4.91468	4.91468	100.00%	
1000			Commercial/Industrial-HT	29	0	29	238	0	0	0	0%	1	26.22357	9	26.2235726	7491	G		28.5832831	28.5832831	100.00%	
1			Others	217	0.	217	17%	- 0	0	0	014	1 11	4,785379	0	4.785379	33%			4.18984626	4 18964626	100,00%	
77	At comp	pany level		1256	0	1236	100%	. 0		0	100N	36.53403	35.61108	0	35.6110256	100N	0.9230084	3%	38.2900955	38.2900955	100.00%	3%
** Noti the app	e - It shell be plicable rate	e mandatory to a of subsidy not	o record the energy supplied separately for a bified by the state government.	such category of cors	umers which is beir	1g provided a sep	erate rate of su	baidy in the	tariff, by the sta	da government	, so that the	subsidy due	for the elec	tricity distribu	ition company i	a quarterly calco	lated by multiply	ing the energy	y supplied to a	auch of such ca	lagory of cons	umers by

plied is found to be in

cdac and if any of the info

code	1.000.000
	Please enter name of circle
1	Please entier circle rode
U	Please anter numeric value or 0
11	Formula protected

supplied in such loss.

Signature -Name of Energy Manager: Registration Number: N.Pomaja CEA-24097

a to the Central Govern

e of Authorized Signatory

Form of Input Energy

	Tominippe energy (Detain of typic energy & infrastructure)																			
10									Alwe	and a subject of the	heliviture									-
3.00									111101								N CLASS	-	terate p	invest of const
	Institute and	NOR MU															RUNCH	<u> </u>	10010	arrest in
	Transmission loss	Mil														_	6	-	_	
A	Events sold outsid	is the peripheral MU	1														0	-	_	
A1	Open access sale	MI															0			
As	DE wie																0			
A?	Net input energy i	received at DISCOM	periphery or at dis	ibution points (M.)													22.01			
4.8	a 100% memory	evolutile at 66/10 kV	(Delett yes or no fe	in kri																
A9	h 10% netwice	evolutile at 11 KV/De	elect yes or no from	<u> </u>													. tt			
A.12_	N.C. PERIOD IN	MALK 21																-		
A11	N. of metering and	iluble at concurner e	M														5378	-		
AV	No of feeders at 6	Diverting level																<u> </u>		
AU	No of Involves at 1	NY off-age lovel															-	<u> </u>	_	
A 15	No. of 11 August 240, A	attrate tra																-	_	
A.16	Line kough (dat, ko	nd at 66kV unitage let	wl														- 0	-		
A.17	Line longth (dr. la	ni at liky vokast in	w/														1		_	
A 18	time length (rist, in	ni at 1194 yokase le	w.														6			
A.19	ine length (ben) a	cit level															155			
A.20	singh of Aerial B	unched Galles															0			
A.21	Length of Undergr	stund Cables															110	_	_	
All	HIAL ratio																01.01.8	_		
	_	_	_	_	_		_	_	11111	e leg lege presses	Notice the	_	_	_	_	_				
-								L WOOL COMPANY	E New re	and a shot every a	ryeter perte		(mark)		·			-	1.100	
			Votes		1000			Oldered semicord	Transformed Trans	Taranal Day	(And Independent March		Polis of Communication			Parind Inc.	n. 10.		100	
14	ine .	Ores	Land	Dubles	Sub-Driver	late	faster have	ANDAME	familiana)	Dep of last	ide manuality	h this matched	Samlar of house	Total Number of						family down
			(10)	hud	hid					attail mater		through	when maker was	hours in the	Mater 1.No	C(FT rate	Maant .	Equit All		(HARD & HAR)
										nadari		adoration f	and in the	whi			1441	140		
8.1			19911	793	630/900	REA.	WK.	AM .	Applied		Maul	105			(NATE)	NOA.	0.80	-	-	
			_	_	-	- 01	1000	M	Intere		Mast	105			(WHE	891	250	-	-	
						1	(61	AM	herejstel		Mani	105			VIE NO.	and .	6.62	-	\vdash	
8.4						1	91	AM	hallond		riad	104			110.000	M(A	4.4)	-	-	
41					_		Wil	450	tystury		Maal	105			(MOR)	894	245	-	\vdash	
						1	11	IM	herejand		Man	103			24040	101	259	-	-	
8.7						<u> </u>	(9)	IM	hatpind		Mail	105			110.000	myA	1.10	-	-	
- 11							VH	AM	Ignitional		Maal	105			04000	N/A	0.00	-	-	
83					_	<u> </u>	1919	AM	funtional		Mad	105			(WAR	8-01	0.08	-	-	
8.10						- 65	PERMI	141	Interd		Mail	104			PRIMA I	#A	4,80	-	-	
8.11					_	0	N/R[7A]	AM .	Failerd		Mayl	184			(NAME)	894	0.91	-	-	
0.12				_		(Max	MATENEND I	AM	lysteni		Mast	105			(M00	81	0.00	-	-	
10							10				Mart				Ana set	(9))		-	-	
8.14					_		UN H				Mayl				(NAME)	8.61		-	-	
80					_		101 101				Meet				2400	8.01		-	-	
8.10					_										_	_		-	-	
0.17																		-	-	
618					_											_		-	-	
															_			-	-	
				_											_			<u> </u>	-	
8,11																		-	-	
111			-														-	-	-	
10																		-	-	
												_				_	-	-	-	
10		-																-	-	
											_	_			-	_		-	-	
147			-		-				_									-	-	
10					-				_				_			_	-	-	-	
111								-			-	_					-	-	-	
8.80									-			_						-	-	
411			-		-											_	-	-	-	
											_							-	$ \rightarrow $	
1			-		-				-									-	-	
11					-													-	-	
AM			-					_						_	-	_		-	-	
																	_	-	-	
			-		-		-	_								_		-	-	
1											_		_				-	-	-	
			-		_	_		_				_		_		_	-	-	-	
8.40								-			_			_				-	-	
141						_			-		-	_		-		_		-	-	
10									_									-	-	
			_	_	_				-		_		_					-	-	
MR.																				

Details of consumers

		(Details of Consu	ners)			
		Summary of Ene	rey			
	Peri	od From 1st April 2022 to	31th March 20	23		
S.No	Type of Consumers	Category of Consumers (EHT/HT/LT/Others)	Voltage Level (In Voltage)	No of Consumers	Total Consumption (In MU)	Remarks (Source of data)
1	Domestic	LT	415V/230 V	428	0.926641	
2	Commercial	LT	415	133	0.956276	
3	IP Sets	0	_	8 - 3	}	
4	Hor. & Nur. & Coffee/Tea & Rubber (Metered)	0				
5	Hor. & Nur. & Coffee/Tea & Rubber (Flat)	0				
6	Heating and Motive Power	0		1 7		
7	Water Supply	0				
8	Public Lighting	LT	415	3	1.013126	
9	HT Water Supply	0		i î		
10	HT Industrial	HT	11 kV	1	0.520671	
11	Industrial (Small)	LT	415	12	0.0436	
12	Industrial (Medium)	0				
13	HT Commercial	HT	11 kV	28	25.6844926	
14	Applicable to Government Hospitals & Hospitals	0				
15	Lift Irrigation Schemes/Lift Irrigation Societies	0				
16	HT Res. Apartments Applicable to all areas	0		1	3	
17	Mixed Load	LT	415 V	343	2.650024	
18	Government offices and department	HT	11KV	7	2.518615	
19	Government offices and department	LT	415 V	68	0.218194	
20	Mixed load	LT	230 V	233	1.0793904	
21	Others-3 (if any , specify in remarks)					
22	Others-4 (if any , specify in remarks)			ľ.		
23	Others-5 (if any , specify in remarks)			()		
24						
25						
26				8	}	
27						
28						
29						
30					2	
31						
32						
33						
34						
35						
36					1	
37				1		
38						
39						
40				(1	
		Alf. I	Total	1256	35.61	
					1	

8.15 Energy Purchase bill for the supply of Energy at Vallarpadam (Feb 20230-Supplier KSEBL.

KERALA STATE ELECTRICITY BOARD LIMITED

Office of the Special Officer(Revenue), Patlom, Thiruvananthapuram DEMAND NOTICE FOR FEBRUARY 2023

(As per CHAPTER VILOF KERALA ELETRICITY SUPPLY CODE -2014)

Con	135565	0004530	ç.	Bill Date	02-Feb	-2023	D	ie Date D	2-Feb-2	923	BÚ	No	2	102811	1041099	Ver:0
Tant	License	e: CPT					D	C Date 2	4-heb-2	023	CD		51	16060	BG	611606
COCHI JOINT E COCHI ERNAK Mobile I	N PORT DIRECT IN PORT (ULAM., no-944)	TRUS OR,PO TRUS COCHI 644810	T-VALLAR RT BASED T,VALLAR N-9 1 LCN :50	PADAM) SEZ, PADAM,				SBI Virtus Consumer TDS u/u 1	GSTIN 94Q : 49	JD- /KSE 91.65	B (L	58(N00704 3657 (D+32)	83)-KS	SEBH(1	9Z1	
		distanti an	on 31-Dec-2	122		Date	(Price	ious Reade	0 3	1-Dac-20	221	Email: dvcm	ineleriti	cachi	wood noon	in
Disriched"	1		Lindianulad	12	614403	Date o	(Price	and Reading		1-Jan-20	23	Supply Walter	-	RV I	4T	
			Citrapolare		a) en a						-	Home Trees	-	00	- 10	13.
Contra	ed 75	(KVA)	130% of 0	D Connect	Ned Load	-		Avera	ge there don't	- C	-	Cardina .		UR-OF-	2	
2000	0	2250.0	3902.0	-	10	207	2 00	Consump	1300		-	Carte	100	making		
		2200.0	00000				+.00	.09	0.000			CHI LINE	-			
		Re	ading Deta	lis of me	ter 220	01331-	Work	ding (KV/	,KWh	KVAh,	& H	(VArh) for	01-20	023		
. Emergy	y Consum	pbon(K)	N(h)				S. bn	ergy Const	umption	(KVArh)	Lap	and .	D/YAJ	Kh (Lei	ed)	
000	PR		112	MP.	Un	nite:	Zane	FR.	IR		IF	Units	FI	R	IR	Units
-	43/78	100	18420.00	40.000	-	241460	1	3497.00	3005	00 40	000	7200	125	67.00	294.00	27
8	41056	00	34340.00	40.000		268840	- 8	2058.00	1684	00 40	000	15780	101	19.00	880.00	83
-				Total		648400	-		Te	ital kWA	N(La	(0) 42640	WArts	(Lead)		177
. Energy	y Consum	pbon(K)	VAh)				4. Der	mand (KVA	3	1.18	Rep	dings	MF	6 I.	Un	rita
Cone .	FR		iR .	MF	- Un	nte	. 1					30,97	40.0	00		1238
1	44458	00.0	38319.00	40.000		245560	2			-	_	38.53	40.0	00		154.5
-	21983	90.0	34517.00	40,000	-	270440	3.74	tiony Lusion	110	1		35,35	+0.0	uu		1934
	-sere		20011-200	fulai		655000	S.Col	lony Lighte	19		_	-	_			0
W0.PF=K	KWINKVAR	i .		6.99	· ·		7.00	nerator	-				1			
						_	IND	OICE								
							1			_			-	-		
Total Dr	omion Ch	1000		- 00		PC#10	_	Avriaghts [ca)	S Other	Cho	0008			Anco	ni -
a. Dom	and Chard	ange 10		-	2250.0	585.05	0		5000.00	Roore	Conta da	ngus no Fasi	-	<u> </u>		0.
h.			-		0.0	385.00	0		0.00	Chart	no to	Salaised Prove	write	+		100100
с.			~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	<u> </u>	0.0	380.00	0		0.00			0				
d. Ense	aa Domar	d Charge	é.			190.00	0		0.00	1						
						190.00	0		0.00							
1.			1			190.00	0		D.00							
Sub Tote	s (a+b+c+	d+e+t)						85	5000.00	1						
2. Total Ein	nergy Cha	rges				ar - 3	22			1						
a. Energ	rgy chiarge	\$	i.		648400	6.2500	0	405	2500.00	1						
b						9.3750	0		0.00							
d				1		4.6875	Ó.	0.00	0.00							
Sub Lotal	el(a+b+c)						+	405	2500.00							
3.PF Ince	antive / Dis	incentive	K.				+	-8	1060.00							
otal Ene	argy Char	H.	2000			_	_	397	1450.00	1						
a facto	un Liedetan	in Cynai	g root	i		0			-	10 Lob	March	£ 1 ko 91	-	<u> </u>		DIST NAME OF
h Color	ny Likthing	12 12		-	0	0			0.00	Phierbil	TALK.	(Round off)	-	+		0.0
Sub lote	(a+b)	-					-			UnDisp	bats	Arr Amount	-	1	i	2614403.
Electric	Hy Duty				4052500	0.10	0			Less	Art	unnice / Credi			-	
6 Elo, Sur	rcharge				648400	9.02	5				CD	Interest				0.0
Duty on	i levil gene	raisd en	ingy		0	0.01	2		0.00	3	. Cp	Din Kel				0.0
Penalty	for non-se	egn, of lig	ht load	-					100	Net P	ava	ble		1	170	06045 0
											- 1.2	5550				
		e Sevent	ty Str Lekh S	te Thousand	d Party N	ine Only	2	-	-		_		_	_		
Rupeer	One Crov						Bel	ance Adva	nce et C	redit, if	any .		_	1		
Rupeez	One Crov													-		
Rupeer E & O.E Vs per F vih the nformat	Regulati officer d tion &an	on 130 lesigna	of Kerala I ted to issue aments.(Ple	Electricity the bill (lase see t	Supply Special he inst	Code Officer ructions	2014 (Rev Love	any com renue)). F rleaf)	plaint 'lease	regardi follow (ng	official Fac	of a bil xebool	li shai k pag FFICE	I be first e fb.com ER (REV	taken viksebi (
Rupeer E & O.E As per F wih the nformat	Regulati officer d tion &an	on 130 lesigna nounce	of Kerala I ted to issue aments.(Ple	Electricity a the bill (sase see t	Supply Special he instr	Code Officer ructions	2014 (Rev Love	any com renue}). P rleaf)	plaint lease	regardi follow (ng	accuracy o official Fac SPEC	of a bil xebool IAL O	ll shal k pag FFICE	ll be first e fb.com ER (REV	taken vksebi ('ENUE)
Rupeer E & O.E As per F with the nformat	Regulati officer o tion &an	on 130 lesigna incunci	of Kerala I ted to issue aments.(Ple	Electricity a the bill (sase see t 2192811	Supply Special he insti	Code Officer ructions	2014 (Rev ove	any com renue}). F rleaf)	plaint lease	regardi follow (556949.)	ng	official Fac	of a bil xebool IAL O	ll shai k pag FFICE	I be firs e fb.com ER (REV	taken u viksebi f /ENUE)
Rupeer E.8.O.E As per F with the informat	Regulati officer d tion & an	on 130 lesigns incunct	of Kerala I ted to issue ments (Ple	Electricity a the bill () iase see t 2162811	Supply Special he inst	Code Officer ructions	2014 (Rev ove	i any com renue)). F rleaf)	plaint lease	regardi follow (ssss49)	ng a	accuracy o official Fac SPEC	af a bil xebool IAL O	ll shai k pag FFICE	I be first e fb.com ER (REV Febr	(kseb) (kseb) ((ENUE)

8.16 Energy purchase bill for the Willingdon Island (April 2023)-Su

	Landard March		Income Inc		0001	In	a linta In	Ann.D	121	-	min .		a substate a la	the state of the	
Teriff Lice	answer CPT		partice in		101.5	DC	Date I	Apr-2	1023	CD	-	18	004800	BC	15
COCHINEC	AT TRUS	т				1	SBI Virtuo	A/p.N	(IFS	Code	SBIN00704	193)-K	SEBHT	2101135	2
Office to the Indiragendhi Emekulam 6 Mobile no-9	Executive i Road, Co 582003, 984707821	Chin-3,	Ele.), I.G.Ro(ad, Ca	ochin-3		Costutive/ TDR els 16	ASTIN. AG 18	80- 190 03-4 34	CRED (L.	9657 (D+32	WAECI	K2277NI	ΔZ τ	
2	Atreats al	a on 25-Fab-2	223		Date of	Pres	lous Newdo	1 3	l-Fab-	-2025	tread: dyar	reselue)	Boosta	nparl.gov.	in
Citization	317	Gridleputeit	1		Deen of	Piec	wit Roading	13	6-864	-8022	Noply Volta	99.	10 XV	EH	í .
Contract	195 of CD	130% of 0	D Connected (Lord			Aien		-	_	sating Type		Hari-DP	5	
and an a	18/241	(nixe)	(KW)	-	MD (R	980	Cashang	Int (KW	NI 1	PF A	Seettaan Siocle	-	Transini	water what the second s	-
	and a state of the	and the Dark			Contraction of	in the second	1	ACT ACT.	10.14		SHOEL SHOEL		10.00		è.
Constant Const	He	ading Deta	and or meter	1/0/	0822-V	VOIN	ING (KVA	,rwn	, NVA	ALL IN	VAIN 10	1 03-2	DIZS		
Zone FS	R	/8	ME	400		Zone	AR	18	T	107	T Unite	T	T St	18 1	w
1 543	9829.00	540245.00	150.000	19	40/000	1	87254,8	8821	1.0	50.000	54180	0	779.00	742.93	6
2 167	1898.00	164696.00	150.000		435300	1	30163.0	2104	0 1	150.000	3270	0 1	96.00	194.00	1
			Tate	20	566150			To	nal an	White a	21090	O KVA	tillant)		-
2. Energy Cons	aumpoles (K)	WAN	101			C Der	AVA) See	(P. 13	-	Reb	sings		-	Un	24
Zone FS	2 00 pe	AR	150,000	- Child	110000	1		-	+		42.504	150	000		- 1
2 170	2042.00	168050.00	150.000	-	438800	2	5		+		27.805	150.	000		4
1 249	9099.00	284232,00	150.000	1	r24050	STAC CON	tory Lightin	9			72				_
Ave PELKKINK	COMP. :	- 1	1.00		siturde	7 G 44	Armor	8	_	_		<u> </u>			
						IND	DICE								
		10	Une	Ť	Rate	T	Amount (R	1	<u> </u>				1	deepay	
Tutal Demand	Charge:		20 - 10 CO.		100	1		1	5.08	her Chie	gen :		102	1.0000	-
a Demand Ci	taige		5 W	176.0	588.000	-	342	660.00	File	conwide	tin Faan		1		
				0.0	380.000	-		0.00	0	orges for	Dehale CPays	ear the	_		_
d. Excess Out	mand Charge			D	190.000	-		0.00							
. 0.			2		198.000			0.00							
				_				0.00							
1.					168.000	-									
f. Suib Tatal (a+b 3 Total Freezy 1	ocedeaet)		10	-	198.000		342	000.00							
f. Sub Tatal (a+b) Total Energy () Energy che	orandrant) Overpres		156	3150	162,000		342	187.50							
f. Sub Tatal (a+b- 3 Total Energy of a. Energy cha 3.	enges		256	5150	168.000 8.25000 8.37600	E	342	187.50 0.00							
f. Saib Tatal (a+b- 2 Total Energy t a. Everyy the 1, E.	ecedeaet) Ovages arges			8150	168.000 8.25000 8.37600 4.66752		542	600.00 H87.50 0.00							
f. Suib Tatal (a-b 2 Total Energy i a. Energy the 1. E. Suib Tatal(a-b- 1.PF Incentia-1	c-d-s-f) Okages anjes cj		256	8150	198.000 8.25000 8.37500 4.00752		96030 46030 46030	000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 107.50							
f. Saib Tanal (a-b 2 Tonal Energy ch a. Energy ch 5. Sub Tanal (a-b- 1 PF Incention 1 Tonal Energy C	-c-d-s-f) Oxoges anges -c) Dissourcher hange		256	9150	198.000 8.25000 9.37600 4.00752		242 9803 4603 4603 4603	0.00 0.00 0.00 1107.50 1107.50 200.01							
f. Saib Tatel (a-b 3. Total Energy the 8. Saib Tatel (a-b- 1.PF Indestine 1 Tatel Energy Chair 4. Energy Chair	-c-d-s-t) Charges erges -cj Dassoerder Charge ers er Lagtes	r +g knaft	256	5150	198.000 8.25006 5.37566 4.66752		342) 9803) 4503) 4503) 4503)	1187.50 0.00 0.00 1107.50 100.91 302.91					-		
E. Sub Tatal (a-b 3. Tatal Energy ch 8. Everys cha 8. Sub Tatal (a-b 1.PF Incenter 1 Tatal Energy C 4. Everys Ching 8. Factory Light 5. Tabar 1.	-c-d-s-t) Churges erges -c) Dissected on Charge transition Charge transition	eg koast	250	0	148.000 8.25060 4.66752		342 9003 4003 400 400 400	000.00 (107.50 0.00 (107.50 000.00 (107.50 000.01	10.74	zesījado Mirro	61 ta @)		Ē	18	2543
T. Sub Tatal (a+b 3. Total Ferry th a. Every the b. Sub Tatal(a+b- 1.PF Incenture 1 Def Incenture 1 Cost Tatal(a+b) b.Colore Upp b.Colore Upp Sub Tatal(a+b)	-c-d-s-t) Churges etges -c) Dissectorities Charge tris to Lightle bring ting	eg knaff	390	0150 0	148.000 8.25000 9.07500 4.66752 0.1 0.1		242 9803 4503 4503 4503 4503	000.00 H87.50 0.00 H87.50 0.00 H87.58 804.94 302.91	10.Te Plasf UsDi	zcal(add Mirsus ispund	F1 to (i) (filound off) Arr Amount		Ŧ	12	9543
 Sub Tatal (a-b) Total Ferry the Every the Every the E Sub Tatal (a-b) Ferry the tatal (a-b) Ferry the tatal (a-b) Ferry tatal (a-b) Exclose Upto 	-c-d-s+t) Charges erges -c) Damasteritors Da	eg knaff	390	0	148.000 8.25000 8.07600 4.00752 0.1 0.100		942 9803 4903 490 490 490	000.00 (187.50 0.00 (107.50 (107.50 (107.50 (100.94) (100.94)	16.Te Picel Lens	stalijade Mirus Inputed	14 te ¥) : Mound aff) Air Ansaat	*		12	2540
F. Sub Total (a+b 3. Total Energy 1 a. Energy the 1. Sub Total(a+b- 1.PE Interl(a+b- 1.PE Interl(a+b- 1.PE Interl(a+b) 4. Energy Chief a.F. actory Ligh 5. Dolory Light 5.	-c-d-s+t) Charges ergen -c) Damasterflee Dam	eg koast	390 3803 3803 360	0150 0 2158 5150	148.000 8.25000 9.466752 4.66752 8.100 8.100		242 9003 4503 4503 4503	000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0	16.Te Picel Undis Long	Mirsus apurad 7. Ada 2. Citi	1 f to 10 Microsoft off) Alle Amount Internet Internet			*	2542
F. Sub Total (a+b) 1 Total Energy the 8. Energy the 8. E. Sub Total(a+b- 1 PF Incentre 1 Total Energy C 4 Energy Total(a+b) 5. Excited Upit 5. Excited Upit 5. Excited Upit 6. Excited Upit 7. Duty on self g 7. Duty on self g 6. Pressible In	-c-d-s=1) Charges erges -c) Discussed are though th	eg koalf	290 7863 868	0 0 2188 6160 0	148.000 8.25000 4.00702 4.00702 8.1 8.1 8.100 8.000 8.001		342/ 98032 48032 48032 48032 48032 48032	600.00 6167.50 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 9914.99 502.91 6.00	16.Te Plus Lung Lung	In the second se	Fil co (i) Micand off) Mr Ansard Mr Ansard Different Offic Ref	8		12	9543
F. Sab Total (a+b) 1 Total Energy 1 a. Energy the B. E. Sab Total(a+b) 1.PF Incentier 1 Total Energy C 4 Energy Oling 6.Dolore Upin 5.Dolore Upin	-cideard) Chapter styces -ci Disconstruction Charge That a Charge that that that perstand anni- se copy, with	eg koalf wiggr gét koad	290 7853 358	0 0 0 2188 5150 0	148,000 8,0760 4,00702 4,00702 8,0760 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000		2422 38032 45032 4503 4503	000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0	16.Te Pice Units Long Not	Payal	F1 to 4) Mound 47) Ar Amound 47) Ar Amound Internet Diffe Ref Dife	50		12	254
F. Saib Total (a+b) 1 Total Energy the a. Energy the B. E. Saib Total(a+b) 1.PF Incentitien Total Energy C 4 Energy Ching 6.Colore Upin 5.Colore	+c+d-s=0 Chopes styles -c(Distant the horga mass at Lights hing the presented assessed y core E(php) Cross E(php)	ng koat Ngg di koad Lach Fitty Fi	200 1003 860 200 Thomas d T	0 0 2188 5190 0	0.100 0.25000 0.37600 4.66752 0.100 0.010 0.010 0.011 0.011 0.011		3421 18032 4503 4503 4503 4503 4503	0000.00 0107.50 0107.50 0000.00 0107.50 0000.00 0100 0100	10.To Picel Urbi Line	Minus Inputs 1.Adi 2.CDi 3.CD Payat	Ff to 4) Mound 44) Ar Amount Inter (Cott Dataset Off Ref Dia	£1		1806	254
F. Sub Total (a+b) 1 Total Energy 1 a. Energy the B. E. Sub Total(a+b- 1.PF Intentitien 1 Total Energy C 4 Energy Children 1 Total Energy C 4 Energy Children 1 E. Sub Total(a+b) 5 Executive Up 5 Executive Up 5 Executive Up 5 Executive Up 6 Pre-share on a C 6 E 4 O F	+c+d+s=0 Choppe arges -c() Distant the horga main set Lightle hing tang tang tang tang tang tang tang ta	eg koalf Nigy del koad Lackh Filby Fi	200 1073 1054 Cov Thobased T	0150 0 0 2188 5150 0	0.100 0.25000 0.07600 4.00752 0.100 0.000 0.012 0.012 0.012		3421 18032 45032 4503 4503 4503 4503 4503	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0	10.To Pical Units Line Not	Mirus Mirus 1. Adh 3. CD Payat	I to 4) Mound off) Ar Assout Stread Oth Ret Die	8		1806	254
F. Saib Total (a+b) 1 Total Energy of a. Energy chi B. E. Saib Total(a+b- 1.PF Indexitien Total Energy C 4 Energy Chilar b.Colore Ugin b.Colore Ugin b.Co	+c+d+a=0 Choppe styles -c(Distant the hoppe thop	eg koatt eg koatt elgy del koad Lach Fitty Fi	200 2803 369 Cov Thodasand T	0 0 2168 5160 0	948.000 8.25000 8.37900 4.66702 8.010 8.026 8.026 8.026 8.026 8.026	(a)	3421 18032 45032 4503 4503 4503 4503	000.00 Ha7.50 0.00 Ha7.50 0.00 Ha7.50 000.01 0.00 0.00 0.00	16.Te Picel Urbi Line Not	Mirus apust 1. Ada 3. GD Payat	i 1 to %) Mound off) Ar Amount minor 1 Card Johnson (Dith Ref Sile	8		18	254
F. Salb Tatal (a+b) 1 Tatal Energy (b) 8. Energy (b) 10. E. Salb Tatal (a+b) 10. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10. 10.	+C+d+a=0) Choopes argon 	ng toall nigy dri lood r Lach Riby R	200 7053 359 cor Thousand T	0 0 2168 5160 0	198.000 8.25000 8.0760 4.65102 4.65102 8.076 8.076 8.076 8.076 8.076 8.076 8.076		242) 98032 48032 40 45234 45234 45234 45234 45234 45234 45234	1997, 50 0,00 1997, 50 1997, 50 1997, 69 1997, 69 1997, 69 1997, 69 1997, 69 1997, 69 1997, 69 1997, 60 1997, 6	16.To Picel Urbi Line Net	Mirus Ipund 1. Adı 2. Citi 3. Citi 9.	i 1 to %) Micand off) Ar Ansazt Mican Cond Off Ref Ne	8		18	42
East Taxal (a+b) Total Energy 1 Total Energy 1 Total Energy 1 Every the Every the Every 1 PF Interface Every 1	-c-d-s=0 Chappe styce -c(Discontention Charge the comparison charge the presented anno- presented anno- prese	eg toull eigy det hoed Lash Rity R tool Start tool to issue ements. (Pie	200 1803 169 Cov Thousand T Electricity Suc a the bill (Spo sobe see the	0 0 0 2168 5150 0 1 ect Au	0.1 0.25000 0.01400 0.015 0.000 0.015 0.00	Sel O14 Rev over	3421 18032 45031 4503 4503 4503 4503 4503 4503 4503 4503	1996.99 0.00 1997.50 0.00 1997.50 1999.99 1999.99 1999.99 1999.99 1999.99 1999.99 1999.99 1999.99 1999.99 1999.99 1999.99 1999.99 1999.99 1999.99 1997.90 1907.90 1907.00 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	He To Picel Lind Not Not	etalDafa Minus 1. Add 2. OD 3. CD Payal Many rding 4 w Out 4	Fil to (i) Micand off) Ar Amount minor (Cind Difference) Mican Factor SPEC	e of a li cebox	all shag	1806 1806 Il be first e fo.com	1421 tak
F. Sub Total (a+b) 1 Total Energy of a. Energy chi B. E. Sub Total(a+b- 1.PF Industrier 1 Total Energy C 4 Energy Ching b.Colore Upin b.Colore Upin b.Col	-c-4-s=6 Chappe styres -c(Distant the horge man an Lighter hing tang in an Lighter hing tang in an an A	eg toall eigy det tool Lasth Rifty R tool f Karralar tool fo issue erments. (Pie	200 1003 309 Cor Thousand T Electricity Sup 6 the bill (Spe Spe Spe The	0 0 2168 5160 0 2168 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	8.25060 8.25060 8.0100 8.0100 8.0100 8.0100 8.0100 8.0100 8.0100 8.0100 8.0100 8.0100 8.0100 8.0100 8.0100 8.0100 8.0100 8.0100 8.01000 8.00000 8.00000 8.00000000	Sold Sold Rev over	3421 18032 45033 4503 4503 4503 4503 4503 4503 450	000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0	16.To Plant Lint Net	Minut Incented 2. CD 3. CD Payal Many Many	F1 cs 4) Mound off) Ar Ansaut minor / Cred John Ref Ne Scoursecy / official Fa SPEC	e of a b cebox	all sha	1806 1806 Il be first e fo.com ER (REV	
Sub Taxal (a+b Total Energy Total Energy Total Energy Sub Taxal (a+b Total Energy Sub Taxal (a+b Total Energy Sub Taxal (a+b Total Energy Sub Taxal (a+b) Excloser Up b.Colorer Up b.Colore	 -ci Cho per argen -ci Diamontation -ci Diamontation	eg toulf eiger phi load cash Rity Ri tool to issue erments. (Ple	290 1003 300 Ser Theasend T Electricity Su 5 the bill (Spe 5055 See The 1102011190	0150 0 0 2168 5150 0 0 2168 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0.1 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	Sold Sold Rev over	3421 19032 45032 45032 455532 455532 45552 45552 45552 45552 45552 45552 45552 45552 45555	0.000.00 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.000000	16.To Picelo Line Net Net Solici	Minut I.Adu 2. OD 3. OD Payal Many Many 77.44	i 1 co (i) filoand off) W Ansuzr When I Off Re Den Re SPEC	e of a t cebox	all sha	18 1806 II be first e fb.com ER (REV	eski idak kse

					Peak Lo	oad (A)			Voltag	e		
	Transfor mer name	Capac ity	Full load A	Date of test	R Ph	Y ph	Bph	R-Y	Y-B	R-B	% Loadi ng	Unbalan ce between Phases
1	Feeder Transfor mer	250	333.25	13-07- 2023	11.74	16.3	11.34	415	415	412	4.89	3.41
2	West Way	250	333.35	13-07- 2023	15.5	14.4	1.94	414	417	416	4.32	87.48
3	Tropica na	315	420	13-07- 2023	12.1	13.1	0.9	417	419	416	3.12	92.56
4	Konkan	630	840.05	13-07- 2023	22	25.3	51.5	415	418	418	3.01	-134.09
5	SBI	500	666.7	13-07- 2023	102	125.7	95.51	415			18.85	6.36

Table 48

- 0 Genus SAN kWh kVAh kVAth 5 6 se. No. GP4409882 MWYY: 08/19 ctures Ltd., Haridwar (INDIA) (-)0000 9 1 MELNO 1011 863709026720641 S 3È 0
- 8.18 Photos of functional feeder meters installed in Willingdon substation

Feeder Name: Q9-2

Fig 13



Feeder Name UTL

Fig 14



Feeder Name : Q9-1

Fig 15



Feeder Name : NTRO A2

Fig 16

8.19 FEEDER METER READINGS DOWNLOADED FROM AMI SOFTWARE

1. <u>FEEDER NAME : Q9-1</u>

RTC	MeterNo	KWH_Import	KWH_Export	KVAH_Import	MD_KW	MD_kVA	KVAR
13-07-2023 23:39	GP4409885	551388.1	0	566718.8	35.6	36.5	2.84
13-07-2023 22:37	GP4409885	551375.3	0	566705.5	35.6	36.5	2.52
13-07-2023 21:40	GP4409885	551362.9	0	566692.9	35.6	36.5	2.9
13-07-2023 20:35	GP4409885	551347.5	0	566677.1	35.6	36.5	3.74
13-07-2023 19:45	GP4409885	551335	0	566664.1	35.6	36.5	4.02
13-07-2023 18:35	GP4409885	551316.5	0	566644.9	35.6	36.5	4.72
13-07-2023 17:43	GP4409885	551301	0	566629.1	35.6	36.5	5.01
13-07-2023 16:52	GP4409885	551281.3	0	566608.8	35.6	36.5	6.26
13-07-2023 15:42	GP4409885	551248.9	0	566575.3	35.6	36.5	8.03
13-07-2023 14:41	GP4409885	551219.1	0	566544.5	35.6	36.5	7.25
13-07-2023 13:47	GP4409885	551193	0	566517.4	35.6	36.5	7.29
13-07-2023 12:42	GP4409885	551162.2	0	566485.4	35.6	36.5	8.86
13-07-2023 11:38	GP4409885	551130.1	0	566452.3	35.6	36.5	7.27
13-07-2023 10:41	GP4409885	551100.9	0	566422.1	35.6	36.5	6.48
13-07-2023 09:40	GP4409885	551071.4	0	566391.4	35.6	36.5	7.72
13-07-2023 08:40	GP4409885	551050.9	0	566370.4	35.6	36.5	2.8
13-07-2023 07:36	GP4409885	551036.7	0	566355.8	35.6	36.5	2.9
13-07-2023 06:36	GP4409885	551025.3	0	566344.2	35.6	36.5	1.71

2. FEEDER NAME : Q9-2

RTC	MeterNo	KWH_Import	KWH_Export	KVAH_Import	MD_KW	MD_kVA	KVAR	Current_IR	Current_IY	Current_IB	Voltage_VR
13-07-2023 09:40	GP4409882	394589.7	0	397878.1	23.8	24	- <mark>1.6</mark> 3	0.9	0.96	0.83	6229
13-07-2023 08:40	GP4409882	<u>394573.2</u>	0	397861.5	23,8	24	-2.29	0.82	0.85	0.72	6216
13-07-2023 07:36	GP4409882	<u>394558.7</u>	0	397846.8	23.8	24	-2.53	0.67	0.72	0.6	6192
13-07-2023 06:36	GP4409882	394546.5	0	397834.5	23.8	24	-1.94	0.78	0.82	0.68	6199
13-07-2023 05:40	GP4409882	394535.4	0	397823.1	23.8	24	-2.11	0.65	0.69	0.54	6250
13-07-2023 04:37	GP4409882	394524.2	0	397811.6	23.8	24	-2.57	0.51	0.52	0.5	6324
13-07-2023 03:38	GP4409882	<u>394513.5</u>	0	397800.7	23.8	24	-1.85	0.74	0.78	0.63	<mark>6326</mark>
13-07-2023 02:45	GP4409882	<u>394505.2</u>	0	397792.2	23.8	24	-2.1	0.62	0.63	0.53	<mark>629</mark> 7
13-07-2023 01:41	GP4409882	394493.2	0	397779.9	23.8	24	-3.06	0.55	0.56	0.54	6327
13-07-2023 00:43	GP4409882	<mark>3</mark> 94482	0	397768.4	23.8	24	-1.69	0.71	0.74	0.63	<mark>6325</mark>

3. FEEDER NAME : UTL

RTC	MeterNo	KWH_Import	KWH_Export	KVAH_Import	MD_KW	MD_kVA	KVAR
13-07-2023 23:39	GP4409899	37165.65	0	40465	30.8	31.5	1.09
13-07-2023 22:37	GP4409899	37163.35	0	40462.35	30.8	31.5	1.37
13-07-2023 21:40	GP4409899	37162.1	0	40460.8	30.8	31.5	0.99
13-07-2023 20:35	GP4409899	37160	0	40458.3	30.8	31.5	1.07
13-07-2023 19:45	GP4409899	37157.5	0	40455.65	30.8	31.5	0.86
13-07-2023 18:41	GP4409899	37154.8	0	40452.7	30.8	31.5	1.1
13-07-2023 17:43	GP4409899	37150.3	0	40447.75	30.8	31.5	1.27
13-07-2023 16:39	GP4409899	37142.4	0	40439.6	30.8	31.5	1.04
13-07-2023 15:42	GP4409899	37132.75	0	40429.45	30.8	31.5	-1
13-07-2023 14:41	GP4409899	37118.2	0	40414.15	30.8	31.5	-3.25
13-07-2023 13:41	GP4409899	37105.25	0	40400.55	30.8	<mark>31</mark> .5	1.03
13-07-2023 12:42	GP4409899	37091.3	0	40385.95	30.8	<mark>31</mark> .5	- <mark>0.76</mark>
13-07-2023 11:38	GP4409899	37073.65	0	40367.45	30.8	<mark>31</mark> .5	0.97
13-07-2023 10:41	GP4409899	37048.65	0	40341.95	30.8	<mark>31</mark> .5	2.6
13-07-2023 09:41	GP4409899	37035.65	0	40328.4	30.8	<mark>31</mark> .5	-3.57
13-07-2023 08:40	GP4409899	37030	0	40322.5	30.8	<mark>31</mark> .5	- <mark>4.48</mark>
13-07-2023 07:36	GP4409899	37025.95	0	40317.7	30.8	31.5	1.85
13-07-2023 06:36	GP4409899	37021.8	0	40313.05	30.8	<mark>31</mark> .5	1.84

4. FEEDER NAME : NTRO A2

RTC	MeterNo	KWH_Import	KWH_Export	KVAH_Import	MD_KW	MD_kVA	KVAR	Current_IR	Current_IY	Current_IB
14-07-2023 03:49	GP4409883	315296.9	0	319522.5	16.1	16.2	-0.74	-0.32	-0.29	-0.29
14-07-2023 02:42	GP4409883	315292.1	0	319517.4	16.1	16.2	-1.06	-0.24	-0.21	-0.22
14-07-2023 01:39	GP4409883	315287.3	0	319512.5	16.1	16.2	-0.81	-0.3	-0.26	-0.27
14-07-2023 00:39	GP4409883	315282.1	0	319507.4	16.1	16.2	-0.68	-0.3	-0.27	-0.27
13-07-2023 23:39	GP4409883	315277	0	319502.2	16.1	16.2	-0.61	-0.3	-0.27	-0.27
13-07-2023 22:37	GP4409883	315271.6	0	319496.9	16.1	16.2	-0.85	-0.31	-0.27	-0.28
13-07-2023 21:45	GP4409883	315267.3	0	319492.4	16.1	16.2	-0.74	-0.32	-0.28	-0.29
13-07-2023 19:55	GP4409883	315257.9	0	319482.9	16.1	16.2	-0.66	-0.35	-0.3	-0.32
13-07-2023 18:00	GP4409883	315247.4	0	319472.3	16.1	16.2	-0.41	-0.3	-0.27	-0.26
13-07-2023 15:42	GP4409883	315231	0	319455.9	16.1	16.2	-0.54	-0.67	-0.64	-0.6
13-07-2023 14:41	GP4409883	315223	0	319447.9	16.1	16.2	-1.01	-0.32	-0.3	-0.28
13-07-2023 12:56	GP4409883	315213.7	0	319438.4	16.1	16.2	-0.98	-0.31	-0.28	-0.29
13-07-2023 10:41	GP4409883	315191.9	0	319416.5	16.1	16.2	-0.04	-0.63	-0.59	-0.56
13-07-2023 09:40	GP4409883	315181.6	0	319406.1	16.1	16.2	-0.32	-0.59	-0.57	-0.51
13-07-2023 08:40	GP4409883	315173.7	0	319398.1	16.1	16.2	-0.64	-0.31	-0.28	-0.29
13-07-2023 06:48	GP4409883	315164.5	0	319389	16.1	16.2	-0.88	-0.28	-0.25	-0.26
13-07-2023 05:45	GP4409883	315158.8	0	319383.3	16.1	16.2	-0.54	-0.4	-0.36	-0.35
13-07-2023 04:37	GP4409883	315151	0	319375.4	16.1	16.2	-0.41	-0.41	-0.37	-0.36
13-07-2023 03:38	GP4409883	315143.9	0	319368.3	16.1	16.2	-0.44	-0.39	-0.35	-0.35
13-07-2023 02:45	GP4409883	315138.1	0	319362.5	16.1	16.2	0.34	-0.41	-0.38	-0.37
13-07-2023 00:59	GP4409883	315125.2	0	319349.5	16.1	16.2	-0.59	-0.34	-0.32	-0.3

ANNUAL ENERGY AUDIT REPORT OF COCHIN PORT AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

List	of	Ta	bl	les
100	•••		~	

S.NO	Table No:	Details of the Table
1.	Table 1	Performance summary of the CoPA for the FY 2022-23
2	Table 2	Quarter wise performance of the CoPA for the FY 2022-23
3	Table 3	Category wise consumers and Energy Sales for the FY 2022-23
4	Table 4	Infrastructure details
5	Table 5	Voltage based consumers and metering infrastructure
6	Table 6	Feeder wise Energy Distribution in Willingdon Island
7	Table 7	Metering target
8	Table 8A	Name and details of the Energy Manager and authorised
9	Table 8B	Centralised Energy accounts and Audit Cell in CoPA (Team
		members)
10	Table 9	Infrastructure details
11	Table 10	Voltage wise consumers metering infrastructure and other assets
12	Table 11	Distribution Transformer details
13	Table 12	Performance summary of the Cochin Port Authority for the FY 2022-23
14	Table 13	Energy input particulars of CoPA for the FY 2022-23
15	Table 14	Energy Sales Particulars of CoPA for the FY 2022-23
16	Table 15	Category wise consumers
17	Table 16	Energy Input Particulars of CoPA for the FY 2022-23
18	Table 17	Energy sales Particulars for the FY 2022-23
19	Table 18	Validation details of the metered data
20	Table 19	Physical verification of meters at Substation
21	Table 20	Power purchase details of the Willingdon Island
22	Table 21	Power purchase details of the Vallarpadam & Puthuvypin area
23	Table 22	Month wise statements generated from Software
24	Table 23	Consolidated total for the FY 2022-23
25	Table 24	Validation of Energy sales Particulars
26	Table 25	Energy accounts for the previous years
27	Table 26	Energy accounts and performance for the FY 2022-23
28	Table 27	Quarter wise Energy Input details for the FY 2022-23
29	Table 28	Quarter wise Energy Sales and Loss details for the FY 2022-23
30	Table 29	Month wise T&D Loss performance of the Willingdon Island
		and Vallarpadam area
31	Table 30	Feeder wise distribution under the Willingdon Island
32	Table 31 A	Category wise consumption and revenue realisation for the FY
		2022-23
33	Table 31 B	Quarter wise and category wise revenue realisation for the FY 2022-23
34	Table 32 A	Status and progress in compliance with the Prerequisites for the
		Energy accounting
35	Table 32 B	Status and progress in compliance with the reporting
		requirements of the regulation
36	Table 33	Action plan for monitoring and reporting
37	Table 34	Action plan for automation
51	1 4010 34	

ANNUAL ENERGY AUDIT REPORT OF COCHIN PORT AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

38	Table 35	Audit team
39	Table 36	Check list prepared by thr Empanelled accredited auditing Firm
40	Table 37	Infrastructure details
41	Table 38	Voltage based consumers and metering Infrastructure
42	Table 39	List of Transformers
43	Table 40	Feeder wise load distribution under the Willingdon Island
		distribution system
46	Table 41	Energy performance of the previous years
47	Table 42	Analysis of performance of the two distribution areas under the
		CoPA
48	Table 43	Power purchase details of the Willingdon Island
49	Table 44	Power purchase details of the Vallarpadam
50	Table 45	Category wise consumers and average billing rate
51	Table 46	Category of service details
52	Table 47	List of documents verified with each parameter
53	Table 48	Peak load measurement details of the Transformers
ANNUAL ENERGY AUDIT REPORT OF COCHIN PORT AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR 2022-23

S, NO	Fig Number	Figure details
1	Fig 1	Quarter wise performance of the CoPA for the FY 2022-23
2	Fig 2	Quarter wise T& D Loss performance for the FY 2022-23
3	Fig 3	Category wise consumption for the FY 2022-23
4	Fig 4	Category wise consumption for the FY 2022-23
5	Fig 5	Power input details in the two areas
6	Fig 6	Annual T&D Loss performance against the PAT
7	Fig 7	Quarter wise T&D loss performance for the FY 2022- 23
8	Fig 8	Quarter wise and Category wise unit consumption for the FY 2022-23
9	Fig 9	Month wise T&D loss performance for the two Areas
10	Fig 10	Month wise T&D loss performance for the two Areas
11	Fig 11	SLD of the Willingdon Island Distribution system
12	Fig 12	SLD of the Vallarpadam area
13	Fig 13	Photo of the Feeder meter in the Feeder Q9-2
14	Fig 14	Photo of the Feeder meter in the Feeder UTL
15	Fig 15	Photo of the Feeder meter in the Feeder Q9-1
16	Fig 16	Photo of the Feeder meter in the Feeder NTRAO A2

List of Figures